

# **GL320M Series @Track Air Interface Protocol**

## EGPRS/LTE Cat-M1/LTE Cat-NB2/GNSS Tracker

QSZTRACGL320MAN0303

Version: 3.03

International Telematics Solutions Innovator

www.queclink.com



Document Title	GL320M Series @Track Air Interface Protocol
Version	3.03
Date	2024-06-27
Status	Released
Document Control ID	QSZTRACGL320MAN0303

#### **General Notes**

Queclink offers this information as a service to its customers, to support application and engineering efforts that use the products designed by Queclink. The information provided is based upon requirements specifically provided to Queclink by the customers. Queclink has not undertaken any independent search for additional relevant information, including any information that may be in the customer's possession. Furthermore, system validation of this product designed by Queclink within a larger electronic system remains the responsibility of the customer or the customer's system integrator. All specifications supplied herein are subject to change.

#### Copyright

This document contains proprietary technical information which is the property of Queclink. Copying of this document, distribution to others or using or communication of the contents thereof is forbidden without express authority. Offenders are liable to the payment of damages. All rights are reserved in the event of a patent grant or the registration of a utility model or design. All specifications supplied herein are subject to change without notice at any time.

Copyright © Queclink Wireless Solutions Co., Ltd. 2024



## Contents

0. Revision History	1
1. Overview	3
1.1. Scope	3
1.2. Terms and Abbreviations	3
2. System Architecture	4
3. Message Description	5
3.1. Message Format	5
3.2. Command and Acknowledgement	6
3.2.1. Server Connection	6
3.2.1.1. Bearer Setting Information	6
3.2.1.2. Backend Server Registration Information	9
3.2.1.3. Quick Start Setting	12
3.2.2. Device Configuration	13
3.2.2.1. Global Configuration	13
3.2.2.2. Auto Unlock PIN	17
3.2.2.3. Software Protocol Watchdog	18
3.2.2.4. Time Adjustment	19
3.2.2.5. Non-movement Detection	20
3.2.2.6. Function Key Setting	22
3.2.2.7. Network Selection	25
3.2.2.8. Outside Working Hours	26
3.2.2.9. Binding SIM Card	28
3.2.2.10. Fixed Report Information	29
3.2.2.11. Serial Port Setting	32
3.2.2.12. Automatic APN Changeover	34
3.2.2.13. Automatic APN List	35
3.2.2.14. Jamming Detection	36
3.2.3. Position Related Reports	38
3.2.4. Alarm Settings	38
3.2.4.1. Geo-fence Information	38
3.2.4.2. Speed Alarm	39
3.2.4.3. Temperature Alarm	41
3.2.4.4. Motion Sensor Alarm	42
3.2.4.5. Harsh Behavior Monitoring	44
3.2.5. IO Application	46
3.2.5.1. Digital Input Port Settings	46
3.2.6. Other Settings	47
3.2.6.1. Real Time Operation	47
3.2.6.2. Data Transfer Between UART and Backend Server	52
3.2.6.3. White Number List Configuration	53
3.2.6.4. Settings for SMS with Google Maps Link	55
3.2.6.5. Over-the-Air Configuration Update	56
3.2.6.6. Preserve Device Special Logical State	58



3.2.6.7. Remote Control of Vibration Motor	59
3.2.6.8. GPS-Assisted Motion Measurement	60
3.2.6.9. Command String Storage	62
3.2.6.10. User Defined Function	63
3.2.6.11. Report Control	67
3.2.6.12. SMS Position Request	68
3.3. Report	68
3.3.1. Position Related Report	68
3.3.1.1. General Position Report	68
3.3.1.2. Location Request Report	75
3.3.1.3. Location as Centre of Geo-Fence	75
3.3.2. Device Information Report	76
3.3.3. Report for Querying	80
3.3.4. Event Report	
3.3.5. Buffer Report	
3.3.6. Report with Google Maps Hyperlink	
3.4. Heartbeat	
3.5. Sever Acknowledgement	113
4. Appendix: Message Index	



## 0. Revision History

Version	Date	Author	Description of Change		
	2020 12 21	Flame Zhong	Initial Version based on GL310M Series @Track Air		
	2020-12-21	Fiame zneng	Interface Protocol_V1.03		
			1. Added the LTE mode 4 and 5 to the AT+GTBSI		
1.01	2021 02 07	Elamo Zhong	command.		
	2021-02-07	Fiame Zneng	2. Modified the < <i>Power Key Indication</i> > description		
			in the AT+GTFKS.		
	2021-04-15	Flame Zheng	1. Modified 'Cat-NB1' to 'Cat-NB2'.		
	2021 05 10	Elamo Zhong	1. Added the AT+GTURT command.		
	2021-05-10	Fiame Zheng	2. Added the AT+GTRVC command.		
2.01			1. Modified the range of <send interval=""> from 5 -</send>		
	2021-07-28	John Liu	86400(sec) to 1 - 86400(sec) in AT+GTFRI		
			command.		
			1. Added <multi-packet sending=""> in the AT+GTSRI</multi-packet>		
			command.		
			2. Added the <external battery="" percentage=""> to the</external>		
	2021-08-13	Flame Zheng	<eri mask=""> in the AT+GTFRI Command.</eri>		
2.02	2021-08-13	Flame zheng	3. Added the <external battery="" percentage=""> in the</external>		
			+RESP:GTERI report.		
			4. Added the <external battery="" percentage=""> in the</external>		
			+RESP:GTINF report.		
	2021-11-16	John Liu	1. Deleted <temperature data=""> from +RESP:GTERI.</temperature>		
2.03	2022-05-09	Ted Li	1. Added <dns interval="" lookup=""> to AT+GTSRI.</dns>		
			1. Added <black oper1=""> <black oper2=""> <black< td=""></black<></black></black>		
			oper3> to AT+GTNTS.		
	2022-08-03		2. Added <outside-working-hours event=""> and</outside-working-hours>		
2.04		Ted Li	<inside-working-hours event=""> to <input id="" mask=""/></inside-working-hours>		
			in AT+GTUDF.		
	2022-10-31		1. Modified the description in AT+GTNTS.		
	2022-11-09		1. Added <walking mode=""> to AT+GTCFG.</walking>		
			1. Added the <rat and="" band="" data=""> to the <eri< td=""></eri<></rat>		
			Mask> in the AT+GTFRI Command.		
			2. Added the <rat and="" band="" data=""> to the <eri< td=""></eri<></rat>		
			Mask> in the AT+GTFRI command.		
2.05	2022-11-24	Ted Li	3. Added the <edrx periodic="">, <edrx m1="" pagings=""></edrx></edrx>		
			and <edrx nb2="" pagings=""> to the AT+GTBSI</edrx>		
			command.		
			4. Modified the range of <radius> and <check< td=""></check<></radius>		
Interval> in AT+GTGEO.					
2.06	2023-04-03	Ted Li	1. Added AT+GTAAS command for automatic APN		



Image: switchover.         Switchover.           2023-04-17         2023-04-17           2023-04-17         1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> to minimum 20 meters in AT+GTFRI.           2.07         2023-04-23         Liven Huang         1. Added the AT+GTIAC command.           2.07         2023-04-23         Liven Huang         1. Added the AT+GTIAC command.           2.07         2023-04-23         Liven Huang         1. Modified the fourth parameter from <reserved> to <output direction=""> in AT+GTRTO.           2.07         2023-04-21         Liven Huang         1. Deleted AT+GTAAC command.           2.08         2023-07-21         1. Deleted AT+GTAAC command to enable or disable automatic APN changeover function.           2.08         1. Deleted AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists.         1. Added <at+gtapn <external="" adding="" battery="" command="" control="" extra="" percentage="" to=""> and <internal battery="" percentage=""> in AT+GTRPC.     &lt;</internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></at+gtapn></output></reserved></mileage></distance>			<b>1</b>	
Image: 2023-04-172. Added more info to the Note for EDRX function. 				switchover.
2023-04-171. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> to minimum 20 meters in AT+GTFRI.2.072023-04-23Liven Huang1. Added the AT+GTJDC command. 2. Added the AT+GTBM command. 3. Added +RESP:GTPFL and +RESP:GTHBM. 4. Modified the fourth parameter from <reserved> to <output direction=""> in AT+GTRTO. 5. Added 'Pure charging mode' in <full on="" power=""> of AT+GTFKS.2.082023-07-21.1. Deleted AT+GTAAC command. 2. Added AT+GTAAC command to enable or disable automatic APN changeover function. 3. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added <external battery="" connection="" kit=""> to +RESP:GTBAT.2.08Ted Li1. Added AT+GTAPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <intern< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>2. Added more info to the Note for EDRX function.</td></intern<></external></external></full></output></reserved></mileage></distance>				2. Added more info to the Note for EDRX function.
2023-04-17       to minimum 20 meters in AT+GTFRI.         2.07       2023-04-23       Liven Huang       1. Added the AT+GTIBM command.         2.07       2023-04-23       Liven Huang       1. Added the AT+GTIBM command.         2.07       2023-04-23       Liven Huang       4. Modified the fourth parameter from <reserved> to <output direction=""> in AT+GTRTO.         5. Added 'Pure charging mode' in <full on="" power=""> of AT+GTFKS.       1. Deleted AT+GTAAS command.         2.08       2023-07-21       Ted Li       1. Deleted AT+GTAN command to enable or disable automatic APN changeover function.         2.08       Ted Li       Ted Li       1. Added AT+GTRC command to control adding extra <external battery="" connection="" kit=""> to +RESP:GTBAT.         2.08       Ted Li       1. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal battery="" percen<="" td=""><td></td><td>2022 04 17</td><td></td><td>1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage></mileage></distance></td></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></external></external></full></output></reserved>		2022 04 17		1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage></mileage></distance>
2.072023-04-23I. Added the AT+GTIDC command. 2. Added the AT+GTHBM command. 3. Added +RESP:GTFL and +RESP:GTHBM. 4. Modified the fourth parameter from <reserve3- </reserve3-  to <output direction=""> in AT+GTRTO. 5. Added 'Pure charging mode' in <full on="" power=""> of AT+GTFKS.2.082023-07-21I. Deleted AT+GTAAS command. 2. Added AT+GTAAC command to enable or disable automatic APN changeover function. 3. Added AT+GTAAC command to enable or disable automatic APN changeover function. 3. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added AT+GTAPN command to control adding extra <external <internal<br="" and="" battery="" percentages=""></external>Battery Percentages fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTGR.2.023-08-31Ted Li1. Added <at+gtrpc adding<br="" command="" control="" to=""></at+gtrpc>extra <external <internal<br="" and="" battery="" percentages=""></external>Battery Percentages fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTGR.2.092023-10-201. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Added SIM card is failure&gt; to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></sim></external></report></report></number></current></current></full></output>		2023-04-17		to minimum 20 meters in AT+GTFRI.
2.072023-04-23Liven Huang2. Added the AT+GTHBM command. 3. Added +RESP:GTPFL and +RESP:GTHBM. 4. Modified the fourth parameter from <reserved> to <output direction=""> in AT+GTRTO. 5. Added 'Pure charging mode' in <full on="" power=""> of AT+GTKS.2.082023-07-21<td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1. Added the AT+GTJDC command.</td></full></output></reserved>				1. Added the AT+GTJDC command.
2.072023-04-23Liven Huang3. Added +RESP:GTPFL and +RESP:GTHBM. 4. Modified the fourth parameter from <reserved> to <output direction=""> in AT+GTRTO. 5. Added 'Pure charging mode' in <full on="" power=""> of AT+GTFKS.2.082023-07-21</full></output></reserved>				2. Added the AT+GTHBM command.
2.07       2023-04-23       Liven Huang       4. Modified the fourth parameter from <reserved> to <output direction=""> in AT+GTRTO. S. Added 'Pure charging mode' in <full on="" power=""> of AT+GTFKS.         2.08       2023-07-21       1. Deleted AT+GTAAS command. 2. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal battery="" percentage=""> and <internal battery="" percentage=""> in +RESP:GTBAT.         2.08       2023-08-31       1. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTBAT.         2.09       2023-08-31       1. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTGR.         2.09       2023-10-20       1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. At+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal battery="" p<="" td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>3. Added +RESP:GTPFL and +RESP:GTHBM.</td></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></internal></external></report></report></current></odo></reserved></internal></internal></external></full></output></reserved>				3. Added +RESP:GTPFL and +RESP:GTHBM.
2023-07-21Ted Li1. Deleted AT+GTAPC command. 2. Added AT+GTAPC command to enable or disable automatic APN changeover function. 3. Added AT+GTAPC command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added External Battery Kit Connection> to +RESP:GTBAT. 1. Added AT+GTRTC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF. 1. Delete <reserved> which is after &lt;000 Mileage&gt; in +RESP:GTBAT. 1. Delete <reserved> which is after &lt;000 Mileage&gt; in +RESP:GTBC 1. Delete <reserved> which is after &lt;000 Mileage&gt; in +RESP:GTBCR. 1. Added <summer filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <rumber filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <rumber filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sum filter="" of="" the=""> mode 3 to AT+GTRC. 3.021. Added Li Information about <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; in AT+GTRC. 3.023.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTRI. 3. Su command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</mileage></distance></external></report></sum></sum></sum></sum></sum></sum></sum></sum></sum></sum></rumber></rumber></summer></reserved></reserved></reserved></current></external>	2.07	2023-04-23	Liven Huang	4. Modified the fourth parameter from <reserved></reserved>
2.085. Added 'Pure charging mode' in <full on="" power=""> of AT+GTFKS.2.032023-07-211. Deleted AT+GTAAS command. 2. Added AT+GTAAC command to enable or disable automatic APN changeover function. 3. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added AT+GTAPN command to control adding extra &lt; External Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF. 1. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF. 1. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2.092023-09-08 2023-10-201. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.2.092023-11-07Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Added dti 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <fin mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</fin></csq></sv></sim></sim></external></report></report></number></odo></reserved></current></external></current></full>				to <output direction=""> in AT+GTRTO.</output>
Image: series of the series				5. Added 'Pure charging mode' in <full on="" power=""></full>
2.081. Deleted AT+GTAAS command.2.082023-07-212.08Ted Li2.09Ted Li2023-08-11Ted Li2023-08-111. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists.2.032023-08-312023-08-311. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal battery="" percentage=""> and <internal battery="" percentage=""> and <internal battery="" percentage=""> fields in messages.2.092023-09-082023-10-202023-10-202.09Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li3.012024-01-092024-03-18Ted Li3.022024-03-182024-06-27Liven Huang2024-06-27Liven Huang2024-06-27&lt;</internal></internal></internal></external>				of AT+GTFKS.
2.082023-07-212023-07-212.032.0				1. Deleted AT+GTAAS command.
2023-07-21Ted Liautomatic APN changeover function. 3. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added <external battery="" connection="" kit=""> to +RESP:GTBAT. 1. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF. 1. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2023-08-312023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery</external></report></report></number></number></odo></reserved></current></external></external>				2. Added AT+GTAAC command to enable or disable
2023-07-21Ted Li3. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN lists. 4. Added <external battery="" connection="" kit=""> to +RESP:GTBAT. 1. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF. 1. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2023-08-312023-09-082023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT. 1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;</external></report></report></number></number></odo></reserved></current></external></external>				automatic APN changeover function.
2.08Image: Image: I		2023-07-21		3. Added AT+GTAPN command for setting of APN
2.08Image: Participant of the state of the st				lists.
2.08Ied Li+RESP:GTBAT.2023-08-111. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF.2023-08-311. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT.2023-10-20.2023-10-20Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2024-01-09Ted Li3.012024-01-092024-03-18Ted Li3.032024-06-272024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></number></odo></reserved></current></external>				4. Added <external battery="" connection="" kit=""> to</external>
2023-08-111. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF.2023-08-312023-08-312023-09-081. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2023-10-202023-10-202023-11-07Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li3.012024-01-092024-01-09Ted Li3.022024-03-182024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></odo></reserved></current></external>	2.08		Ted Li	+RESP:GTBAT.
2023-08-11extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF.2023-08-311. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCCR.2023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT.2023-10-201. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.2.09Ted Li1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></external></report></report></external></report></report></number></odo></reserved></current></external>				1. Added AT+GTRPC command to control adding
2023-08-11Battery Percentage> fields in messages. 2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF.2023-08-311. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT.2023-10-202023-10-202023-11-07Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2024-01-09Ted Li3.012024-01-092024-03-18Ted Li3.022024-03-182024-06-27Liven Huang2024-06-27Liven Huang2024-06-27L</number></odo></reserved></current>		2022 00 11		extra <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal< td=""></internal<></external>
2023-08-312. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF.2023-08-311. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT.2023-10-201. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.2023-11-07Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></sim></external></report></report></number></odo></reserved></current>		2023-08-11		Battery Percentage> fields in messages.
2023-08-311. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""> in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT.2023-10-202023-10-202.09Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2023-11-07Ted Li2024-01-09Ted Li3.012024-01-092024-03-18Ted Li3.022024-03-182024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">.2.092.024-06-272.09Liven Huang2.092.024-06-272.09Liven Huang2.012.024-06-272.024-06-27Liven Huang2.024-06-27Liven Huang2.024-06-27<td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF.</current></td></td<></eri></csq></sv></number></odo></reserved>				2. Added <current apn=""> to +RESP:GTAIF.</current>
2023-08-31in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.2023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT.2023-10-202023-10-202023-10-20Ted Li1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS.2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.2023-11-07Ted Li3.012024-01-092024-01-09Ted Li3.022024-03-182024-03-18Ted Li3.032024-06-272024-06-27Liven Huang2024-06-27Liven Huang2024</external></report></report></number>		2022 02 24		1. Delete <reserved> which is after <odo mileage=""></odo></reserved>
2023-09-081. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT.2023-10-201. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS.2023-10-20Ted Li1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS.2023-11-07Ted Li1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; in AT+GTRPC.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">.2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></external></report></report></report></report></number>		2023-08-31		in +RESP:GTLBC and +RESP:GTGCR.
2.092023-10-20Ted Li1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS. 2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.2023-11-07Ted Li1. Modified Information about <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; in AT+GTRPC.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></external></report></external></report></report>		2023-09-08		1. Added <number filter=""> mode 3 to AT+GTWLT.</number>
2.092023-10-20 2023-11-07Ted Li2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.2.023-11-072023-11-071.Modified Information about <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; in AT+GTRPC.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></external></report></external></report>				1. Added <report mode="">to AT+GTDIS.</report>
2.092023-10-20 PercentageFed Li <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt;.2023-11-072023-11-071.Modified Information about <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; in AT+GTRPC.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></external></report></external>				2. AT+GTRPC controls three fields <report mask="">,</report>
2.09Ied LiBattery Percentage>.2023-11-072023-11-07I.Modified Information about <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; in AT+GTRPC.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></external></report>	• • •	2023-10-20	Ted Li	<external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal< td=""></internal<></external>
2023-11-071.Modified Information about <report mask="">, <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; in AT+GTRPC.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></external></report>	2.09			Battery Percentage>.
2023-11-07 <external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal </internal Battery Percentage&gt; in AT+GTRPC.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim></external>				1.Modified Information about <report mask="">,</report>
Battery Percentage> in AT+GTRPC.3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim>		2023-11-07		<external battery="" percentage=""> and <internal< td=""></internal<></external>
3.012024-01-09Ted Li1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of AT+GTUDF.3.022024-03-18Ted Li1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance></sim>				Battery Percentage> in AT+GTRPC.
3.01       2024-01-09       Ted Li       AT+GTUDF.         3.02       2024-03-18       Ted Li       1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.         3.03       2024-06-27       Liven Huang       1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">.         2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.       1. Support one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance>				1. Added <sim card="" failure="" is=""> to the Mask of</sim>
3.02       2024-03-18       Ted Li       1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage> in GTFRI.         3.03       2024-06-27       Liven Huang       1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">.         2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv></mileage></distance>	3.01	2024-01-09	Ted Li	AT+GTUDF.
3.02       2024-03-18       Ted Li       in GTFRI.         3.03       2024-06-27       Liven Huang       1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">.         2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv>				1. Modified the range of <distance> and <mileage></mileage></distance>
3.032024-06-27Liven Huang1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""> to <eri mask="">. 2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri></csq></sv>	3.02	2024-03-18	Ted Li	in GTFRI.
3.032024-06-27Liven Huangto <eri mask="">.2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.</eri>				1. Added bit 11 <sv count=""> and bit 12 <csq rssi=""></csq></sv>
3.03       2024-06-27       Liven Huang       2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to reset single one command to factory setting.				to <eri mask="">.</eri>
reset single one command to factory setting.	3.03	2024-06-27	Liven Huang	2. Sub command RESET in AT+GTRTO supports to
				reset single one command to factory setting.



## 1. Overview

## **1.1. Scope**

The @Track Air Interface Protocol, a digital communication interface based on printable ASCII characters over SMS or wireless network, is used for all communications between the backend server and the terminal. The backend server sends a command to the terminal and then the terminal confirms with an acknowledgement message.

The purpose of this document is to describe how to build the backend server based on the @Track Air Interface Protocol.

## **1.2.** Terms and Abbreviations

Abbreviation	Description
APN	Access Point Name
ASCII	American National Standard Code for Information Interchange
LTE	Long Term Evolution
HDOP	Horizontal Dilution of Precision
ICCID	Integrated Circuit Card Identity
IP	Internet Protocol
SMS	Short Message Service
тср	Transmission Control Protocol
UDP	User Datagram Protocol
UTC	Coordinated Universal Time

### Table 1: Terms and Abbreviations



## 2. System Architecture



Figure1: System Architecture

The backend server needs to be accessible to multiple terminals and should have the following abilities:

- ☆ The backend server should be able to access the internet and listen for the connection requests originating from the terminals.
- The backend server should be able to support TCP or UDP connection with the terminal. It should be able to receive data from the terminal and send data to the terminal.
- $\diamond$  The backend server should be able to receive and send SMS.



## 3. Message Description

## 3.1. Message Format

All the @Track Air Interface Protocol messages are composed of printable ASCII characters. Message formats are shown in the table below:

Message Format	Message Type
AT+GTXXX= <parameter1>,<parameter2>, \$</parameter2></parameter1>	Command
+ACK:GTXXX, <parameter1>,<parameter2>, \$</parameter2></parameter1>	Acknowledgement
+RESP:GTXXX, <parameter1>,<parameter2>,\$</parameter2></parameter1>	Report

The entire message string ends with the character '\$'.

The characters 'XXX' allow the identification of the difference between messages.

The "<parameter1>,<parameter2>,…" carries the message's parameters. The number of parameters is different in different messages. The ASCII character "," is used to separate the neighbouring parameter characters. The parameter string may contain the following ASCII characters: '0'-'9', 'a'-'z', and 'A'-'Z'.

Detailed descriptions of each message format are available in the corresponding message sections.

By sending Commands to the terminal, the backend server can either configure and query the parameters of the terminal or control the terminal to perform specific actions. When the terminal receives Commands over the air, it will reply with a corresponding Acknowledgement message.

The device can send other Reports to the server by configuring related parameters. Please see the following figure:





When the device receives commands over the air, it supports several commands in one SMS or



network packet without separation symbol between adjacent commands. Make sure the total size of the several commands is no longer than 160 bytes if the commands are sent via SMS. Here is an example of sending three commands in one SMS.

## AT+GTFRI=gl320m,1,1,,,0000,2359,60,60,,,1F,0,,,,,,0007\$AT+GTGEO=gl320m,0,3,101.412248,21 .187891,1000,600,,,,,,,,0008\$AT+GTSPD=gl320m,1,5,40,30,60,,,,,,,,,,0009\$

There are three commands (**AT+GTFRI**, **AT+GTGEO** and **AT+GTSPD**) in the message above. And the terminal will handle the three commands one by one and it will report the following three acknowledgement messages to the backend server one by one.

#### +ACK:GTFRI,C30203,352948070074301,,0007,20200806074622,11F0\$

#### +ACK:GTGEO,C30203,352948070074301,,0,0008, 20200806074623,11F1\$

+ACK:GTSPD,C30203,352948070074301,,0009,220200806074624,11F2\$

#### 3.2. Command and Acknowledgement

#### 3.2.1. Server Connection

#### 3.2.1.1. Bearer Setting Information

The command AT+GTBSI is used to set the network parameters.

#### AT+GTBSI=

Example:								
AT+GTBSI=gl320m,,,,,,0,2,0,1,0,0,0,,FFFF\$								
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default				
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m				
2			'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',					
	LIE APN	<=40	<u>··</u> , · ·					
3	LTE APN User Name	<=30						
4	LTE APN Password	<=30						
5	GPRS APN	- 40	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',					
		<=40	<u>··</u> , ··					
6	GPRS APN User Name	<=30						
7	GPRS APN Password	<=30						
8	Network Mode	1	0 - 3	0				
9	LTE Mode	1	0 - 5	2				
10	APN Authentication	1	0 - 3	0				
	Methods							



11	Manual Netreg	1	0 - 1	1
12	Edrx Periodic	<=8	0  5120 - 10485760 ms	0
13	Edrx M1 Pagings	<=4	0 128-2048(x10ms)	0
14	Edrx NB2 Pagings	<=4	0 256-4096(x10ms)	0
15	Reserved	0		
16	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
17	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- ♦ <LTE APN>: The LTE access point name (APN).

Note: If there is only one APN, please use it as LTE APN.

- - 0: Auto. (LTE &GSM)
  - 1: GSM only.
  - 2: LTE only.
  - 3: GSM First. (LTE & GSM)
- ♦ <LTE Mode>: Select LTE network mode.
  - 0: Cat-M1 & Cat-NB2. (Cat-M1 first)
  - 1: Cat-NB2 & Cat-M1. (Cat-NB2 first)
  - 2: Cat-M1.
  - 3: Cat-NB2.
  - 4: Cat-NB2 first (network search sequence: NB2, 2G, M1). It is valid when *<Network* Mode> is set to 0: Auto. (LTE &GSM).
  - 5: Cat-NB2 only (network search sequence: NB2, 2G). It is valid when *<Network Mode>* is set to 0: Auto. (LTE &GSM).

The network search sequence list is shown as below:

Netw	ork Mode	LTE Mode Search Order		Search Order		
Mode	Detail	Mode	Detail	1	2	3
0	Auto	0	Cat-M1&Cat-NB2(Cat-M1 first)		2G	NB2
		1	1 Cat-M1&Cat-NB2(Cat-NB2 first)		NB2	M1
		2	2 Cat-M1		2G	N/A
		3	Cat-NB2		NB2	N/A



		4	Cat-NB2 First	NB2	2G	M1
		5	Cat-NB2 Only	NB2	2G	N/A
1	GSM Only	N/A	N/A	2G	N/A	N/A
2	LTE Only	0	Cat-M1&Cat-NB2(Cat-M1 first)	M1	NB2	N/A
		1	Cat-M1&Cat-NB2(Cat-NB2 first)	NB2	M1	N/A
		2	Cat-M1	M1	N/A	N/A
		3	Cat-NB2	NB2	N/A	N/A
3	GSM First	0	Cat-M1&Cat-NB2(Cat-M1 first)	2G	M1	NB2
		1	Cat-M1&Cat-NB2(Cat-NB2 first)	2G	NB2	M1
		2	Cat-M1	2G	M1	N/A
		3	Cat-NB2	2G	NB2	N/A

**Note:** When <Network Mode> is 1, <LTE Mode> is invalid.

- - 0: No authentication
  - 1: PAP authentication
  - 2: CHAP authentication
  - 3: PAP or CHAP authentication
- - 0: Disable manually register the network.
  - 1: Enable manually register the network.

**Note:** From GL320M\_B7K1\_R01A11V10 or above, if there is no network signal and the device is in stillness, after enabling *<Manual Netreg>*, the device will also not try to scan and register all the time to save power, instead, it will try periodically. But if the device is in movement/vibrating status, it will try all the time.

- Serial Number>: The serial number of the command. It will be included in the ACK message of the command.
- *<Tail Character>*: A character which indicates the end of the command. And it must be '\$'.

- ♦ <Edrx NB2 Pagings>: EDRX Cat-NB2 pagings configuration.

**Note:** <*Edrx M1 Pagings>* or <*Edrx NB2 Pagings>* should not be more than <*Edrx Periodic>*. And please use EDRX function with caution and verification first: make sure that the EDRX function is supported by the SIM (operator) and EDRX may not be helpful for power saving if the sending interval is frequent.

The acknowledgement message of the **AT+GTBSI** command:

#### ► +ACK:GTBSI,

Example: +ACK:GTBSI,C30203,015181001707687,,0040,20200806065404,004F\$						
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default						
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				



Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- <Protocol Version>: The protocol version that the terminal conforms to. The first two characters represent the device type. As shown in the example, "C3" means gl320m. The middle two characters represent the major version number of the protocol and the last two characters represent the minor version number of the protocol. And all the version numbers are hex digits. For example, "0101" means version 1.01.
- $\diamond$  *<Unique ID>*: The IMEI of the terminal.
- ♦ <Device Name>: The specified name of the device.
- ♦ <Send Time>: The local time to send the ACK message.
- <Count Number>: A self-increasing count number in each acknowledgment message and other messages. It begins from "0000" and increases by 1 for each message. And it rolls back after "FFFF".
- <Tail Character>: A character which indicates the end of the command. It must be '\$'.

**Note:** Only after both the commands **AT+GTBSI** and **AT+GTSRI** are properly set can the ACK messages and other messages be received by the backend server.

#### 3.2.1.2. Backend Server Registration Information

The command **AT+GTSRI** is used to configure the backend server that the terminal reports to and the report mode that defines the communication method between the backend server and the terminal.

Example:				
AT+G	TSRI=gl320m,3,,1,218.17.46.1	1,95,213.175.74.20	0,5682,13824347475,5,1,1,,	0,,FFFF\$
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m
2	Report Mode	1	0 - 7	0
3	Reserved	0		
4	Buffer Mode	1	0 1 2	1
5	Main Server IP/Domain	<=60		
	Name			
6	Main Server Port	<=5	0 - 65535	0
7	Backup Server IP/Domain	<=60		
	Name			

#### > AT+GTSRI=



8	Backup Server Port	<=5	0 - 65535	0
9	SMS Gateway	<=20		
10	Heartbeat Interval	<=3	0 5 - 360(min)	0
11	SACK Enable	1	0 1 2	0
12	SMS ACK Enable	1	0 1	0
13	Multi-packet Sending	1	0 1	0
14	DNS Lookup Interval	<=4	0-1440(min)	0
15	Reserved	0		
16	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
17	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- ♦ <*Report Mode*>: Supported report modes are as follows:
  - 0: Stop mode.
  - 1: TCP short-connection preferred mode. The connection is based on TCP protocol. The terminal connects to the backend server every time it needs to send data and will cut off the connection when the terminal finishes sending data. And if the terminal fails to establish TCP connection with the backend server (including main server and backup server), it will try to send data via SMS.
  - 2: TCP short-connection forced mode. The connection is based on TCP protocol. The terminal connects to the backend server every time it needs to send data and will cut off the connection when the terminal finishes sending data. And if the terminal fails to establish TCP connection with the backend server (including main server and backup server), the data will be stored in the BUFFER (if BUFFER function is enabled, please refer to <*Enable Buffer>*) or discarded (if the BUFFER function is disabled).
  - 3: TCP long-connection mode. The connection is based on TCP protocol. The terminal connects to the backend server and maintains the connection by using the heartbeat data. Please note that in this mode the backend server should respond to the heartbeat data from the terminal.
  - 4: UDP mode. The terminal will send data to the backend server through the UDP protocol. It supports receiving protocol command via UDP. Make sure the IP address and UDP port of the device can be visited over the internet, which is generally realized by heartbeat package and the message +RESP:GTPDP.
  - 5: Force on SMS mode. Only SMS is used for data transmission.
  - 6: UDP with fixed local port mode. Like the UDP mode, the terminal will send data by using UDP protocol. The difference is the terminal will use a fixed local port rather than a random port to communicate with the server in this mode. Thus the backend server could use the identical port to communicate with all terminals if the backend server and the terminals are all in the same VPN network. The port number the device uses is the same as the port number of the main server.
  - 7: Backup server supported TCP long-connection mode. The connection is based on TCP protocol. The terminal connects to the backend server and maintains the connection by using the heartbeat data. The backend server should respond to the heartbeat data from the terminals. If the main server is lost, it will try to connect the backup server. And if the backup server is also lost, it will try to connect the main



server again.

- ♦ <*Reserved*>: Not used at present. Please keep it empty.
- - 0: Disable the BUFFER function.
  - 1: Enable the BUFFER function.
  - 2: High priority—Enable the buffer report function. Under this working mode, the device will send all the buffered messages before sending real-time messages except the SOS message (+**RESP:GTSOS**).
- ♦ <*Main Server Port*>: The port of the main server.
- ♦ <Backup Server Port>: The port of the backup server.
- <SMS Gateway>: Maximum 20 characters (including the optional national code starting with "+"). Short code (for example, 10086) is also supported.
- <SACK Enable>: A numeral to indicate whether the backend server should reply with a SACK message to the device.
  - 0: The backend server does not reply with a SACK message after receiving a message from the device.
  - 1: The backend server should reply with a SACK message after receiving a message from the device.
  - 2: The backend server replies with a SACK message when receiving a message from the terminal, but the terminal does not check the serial number of the SACK message.
- <SMS ACK Enable>: This defines whether the ACK confirmation should be replied via SMS
  when the command is sent via SMS.
  - 0: The device will send the ACK confirmation according to the configuration of <*Report Mode*>.
  - 1: The device will send the ACK confirmation via SMS to the phone which sends the command by SMS.
- *<Multi-packet Sending>*: To disable or enable multi-packet sending.
  - 0: Disable. If disabled, the device sends the buffered reports (if there are any) one by one.
  - 1: Enable. If enabled, the device sends multiple buffered reports (if there are any) in one packet, and the length of the packet does not exceed 1460 bytes.
- <DNS Lookup Interval>: The interval to resolve the backend server IP address via DNS lookup. If the IP address changes, the device will rebuild TCP long connection or UDP connection. The rang is 0 - 1440mins. 0 means to disable this feature. If the *<Heartbeat Interval>* is longer than *<DNS Lookup Interval>*, the device won't send the heartbeat message (+ACK:GTHBD) to the backend server.
- ♦ <*Reserved*>: Not used at present. Please keep it empty.
- ♦ <Serial Number>: The serial number of the command. It will be included in the ACK message



of the command.

**Note:** If <*Report Mode*> is set to 4 (UDP mode), it is recommended to enable SACK or heartbeat mechanism (in this case, <*Heartbeat Interval*> should not be set to 0). Otherwise the backend server may not be able to send commands to the terminal.

The acknowledgement message of the AT+GTSRI command:

Example:						
+ACK:GTSRI,C30203,015	+ACK:GTSRI,C30203,015181001707687,,0044,20200806070335,005C\$					
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

**Note:** Only after both the commands **AT+GTBSI** and **AT+GTSRI** are properly set can the ACK messages and other messages be received by the backend server.

#### 3.2.1.3. Quick Start Setting

The command **AT+GTQSS** is used to set the network parameters and backend server information if the length of all its settings is within 160 bytes. Otherwise, use two commands **AT+GTBSI** and **AT+GTSRI** to configure the settings.

$\triangleright$	AT+GTQSS=
------------------	-----------

Example:						
AT+G	AT+GTQSS=gl320m,net,,,3,,1,218.17.46.11,91,213.175.74.200,5682,13824347475,0,0,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m		
			· <u>·</u> ···			
2			'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',			
	LIEAPN	<=40	· <u>·</u> , ·, ·			
3	LTE APN User Name	<=30				
4	LTE APN Password	<=30				
5	Report Mode	1	0 - 7	0		
6	Reserved	0				
7	Buffer Mode	1	0 1 2	1		
8	Main Server IP/Domain	<=60				
	Name					



9	Main Server Port	<=5	0 - 65535	0
10	Backup Server IP/Domain	<=60		
	Name			
11	Backup Server Port	<=5	0 - 65535	0
12	SMS Gateway	<=20		
13	Heartbeat Interval	<=3	0 5 - 360(min)	0
14	SACK Enable	1	0 1 2	0
15	Reserved	0		
16	Reserved	0		
17	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
18	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

The acknowledgement message of the **AT+GTQSS** command:

#### ➤ +ACK:GTQSS,

Example:				
+ACK:GTQSS,C30203,015	5181001707687,,0	045,20190906070824,0062\$		
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Serial Number	4	(HEX)		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

## 3.2.2. Device Configuration

#### 3.2.2.1. Global Configuration

The AT+GTCFG command is used to configure the global parameters.

#### > AT+GTCFG=

Examp	Example:				
AT+G1	CFG=gl320m,gl320m,gl320m	,0,0.0,1,5,001F,,,0F	FF,0,1,1,300,2,0,2049123123	35959,0,0000	
,0,10,0	)"FFFF\$				
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m	
			( <u>)</u> ( )		
2	New Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',		
			· <u>·</u> , · ·		
3	Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m	
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		



-				
4	Enable ODO	1	0 1	0
5	ODO Initial Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	0.0
6	GPS On Need	1	0 1 2	1
7	GPS Fix Delay	2	5 - 60(sec)	5
8	Report Item Mask	<=4	0000 - 007F	001F
9	Reserved	0		
10	Reserved	0		
11	Event Mask	4	0000 - 3FFF	OFFF
12	EPB mode	1	0 1	0
13	LED On	1	0 - 2	1
14	Info Report Enable	1	0 1	1
15	Info Report Interval	<=5	30 - 86400(sec)	300
16	Location Request Mask	1	0 2	2
17	Expiry Enable	1	0 1	0
18	Expiry Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	204912312 35959
19	AGPS Mode	1	0 1	0
20	GSM Report	4		0
21	Battery Switch Power On	1	0 1	0
22	Battery Low Percentage	1	0 - 30	10
23	Walking Mode	1	0 1	0
24	Reserved	0		
25	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
26	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <New Password>: It is used to change the current password.

♦ <Device Name>: The name of the device. It appears in each message.

- <Enable ODO>: Enable or disable the odograph function to calculate the total mileage. The current mileage is included in the message +RESP:GTINF.
  - 0: Disable the ODO mileage function.
  - 1: Enable the ODO mileage function.
  - **Note:** The device will calculate the mileage even if <GPS on Need> is set to 1: Turn off GPS chip after retrieving GPS information every time. But the mileage will be calculated by using the last fix point before turning off GPS and current fix point. So the calculation will not be as accurate as keeping the GPS always on.
- ♦ <ODO Initial Mileage>: The value of current total mileage.
- ♦ <GPS on Need>: Whether to turn off GPS chip after retrieving GPS position information.
  - 0: Do not turn off GPS chip.
  - 1: Turn off GPS chip after retrieving GPS information every time.
  - 2: Do not turn off GPS chip in ignition on state or movement state.
- <GPS Fix Delay>: This value indicates the waiting time after GPS fix succeeds. After GPS fix
   succeeds, the device will wait for a period of time (specified by <GPS Fix Delay>) and then
   get the result of GPS fix because the position obtained immediately after the GPS fix may



not be accurate. (e.g. If *<GPS Fix Delay>* is set to 7, the device will wait 7 seconds after GPS fix and then get the fix result). The range of the parameter value is 5 - 60, and the default value is 5. Unit: second.

- <Report Item Mask>: Bitwise report mask to configure the composition of all the report messages. Each bit represents a field in the message. If a bit is set to 1, the corresponding field will be filled if it is included in the message. Otherwise, the field will be empty.
  - Bit 0 (0001):
     <Speed>

     Bit 1 (0002):
     <Azimuth>

     Bit 2 (0004):
     <Altitude>

     Bit 3 (0008):
     Cell information, including <MCC>, <MNC>, <LAC>, and <Cell ID>

     Bit 4 (0010):
     <Send Time>

     Bit 5 (0020):
     <Device Name>

     Bit 6 (0040):
     Reserved
- <Event Mask>: A Hex value to configure which event reports can be sent to the backend server. Each bit corresponds to a message. If the bit is set to 1, the corresponding message can be sent to the backend server. Otherwise, the corresponding message cannot be sent to the backend server. Here is the matching between each bit and message.

Bit 0 (0001): **+RESP:GTPNA** 

- Bit 1 (0002): **+RESP:GTPFA**
- Bit 2 (0004): **+RESP:GTEPN** Bit 3 (0008): **+RESP:GTEPF**
- Bit 4 (0010): Reserved
- Bit 5 (0020): +RESP:GTBPL
- Bit 6 (0040): **+RESP:GTBTC**
- Bit 7 (0080): +RESP:GTSTC
- Bit 8 (0100): +RESP:GTSTT
- Bit 9 (0200): Reserved
- Bit 10 (0400): **+RESP:GTPDP**
- Bit 11 (0800): +RESP:GTPNL
- Bit 12 (1000): +RESP:GTIGN and +RESP:GTIGF
- Bit 13 (2000): +RESP:GTIGL
- Bit 14 (4000): +RESP:GTPFL
- *<EPB Mode>*: The mode of external power control unit with built-in motion sensor.
  - 0: Disable external power control unit with built-in motion sensor.
  - 1: Enable external power control unit with built-in motion sensor.
- ♦ <LED On>: It configures the working mode of LEDs.
  - 0: Each time after the device powers on or the parameter is set to 0, GPS LED will work for 150 seconds and then shut off. NET LED and Power LED work normally.
  - 1: All LEDs work normally.
  - 2: All LEDs are off except the following circumstances: a. All LEDs work for a period time after power on. b. Power LED flashes fast during power off process. c. Power LED works normally in charging status when a charger is inserted in power off state.
- *<Enable Info Report>*: Enable/disable the device information report (+RESP:GTINF) function. The device information includes state of the device, ICCID, network signal strength, adapter



connection status, battery voltage, charging status, Power and GPS LED working mode, GPS on need setting, and the time of last known GPS fix.

- 0: Disable the device information report function.
- 1: Enable the device information report function.
- - Bit 0: Reserved.
  - Bit 1: SMS location request.
- - 0: Disable the expiry function.
  - 1: Enable the expiry function.
- <Expiration Time>: The time to stop all the GPS fixing and reports. The valid format is "YYYYMMDDHHMMSS". The value range of "YYYY" is "2000"-"3000". The value range of "MM" is "01"-"12". The value range of "DD" is "00"-"31". The value range of "HH" is "00"-"23". The value range of "MM" is "00"-"59". The value range of "SS" is "00"-"59". Please note that RTC time is used here.
- <AGPS Mode>: A numeral to indicate whether to enable AGPS. AGPS helps increase the chances of getting GPS position successfully and reduces the time needed to get GPS position.
  - 0: Disable the AGPS function.
  - 1: Enable the AGPS function.
- *<GSM Report>*: It controls how and when to report cell information. The message +RESP:GTGSM is only sent via TCP short connection even if the report mode is Force on SMS.
  - The 2 high bits, Bit 14 15, represent the GSM report mode.
    - 0: Do not allow the cell information report.
    - 1: Allow the cell information report after failing to get GPS position if cell information is available.
    - 2: Report the message **+RESP:GTGSM** after each successful GPS fix if cell information is available.
    - 3: Report the message **+RESP:GTGSM** regardless of getting GPS position is successful or not if cell information is available.

The 2 low bits, bit0 and bit2 are used to configure **+RESP:GTGSM** will be sent after which message.

- Bit 0 for **+RESP:GTRTL**
- Bit 2 for **+RESP:GTFRI/+RESP:GTERI**
- *<Battery Switch Power On>*: A numeral to indicate whether the device will reboot after the external battery is removed.
  - 0: The device will power off.
  - 1: The device will switch to internal battery and reboot.
- < <Battery Low Percentage>: When the battery is lower than <Battery Low Percentage> and +RESP:GTBPL is enabled in <Event Mask> of AT+GTCFG, +RESP:GTBPL will be reported.
- *«Walking Mode»*: After enabling this mode, it will help the device to obtain the positioning azimuth and speed information better during walking when the using scenarios include



walking.

- 0: Disable the walking mode.
- 1: Enable the walking mode.

The acknowledgement message of the AT+GTCFG command:

#### ➤ +ACK:GTCFG,

Example:				
+ACK:GTCFG,C30203,01	5181001707687,,0	047,20200806071107,0067\$		
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Serial Number	4	(HEX)		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

#### 3.2.2.2. Auto Unlock PIN

The AT+GTPIN command is used to unlock the SIM automatically.

> AT+GTPIN=

Example: AT+GTPIN=gl320m,1,1234,,,,,,FFFF\$				
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m
			<u>··</u> , · ·	
2	Auto Unlock PIN	1	0 1	1
3	PIN	4-8	'0' - '9'	
4	Reserved			
5	Reserved	0		
6	Reserved	0		
7	Reserved	0		
8	Reserved	0		
9	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
10	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- 0:Do not unlock PIN automatically.
- 1:Each time the device powers on, it will detect whether the SIM card is locked with a PIN. If it is locked, the device will auto-unlock the PIN.



➤ +ACK:GTPIN,						
Example:						
+ACK:GTPIN,C30203,01	5181001707687,,(	0048, 20200806071252,0068\$				
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default						
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time	Send Time 14 YYYYMMDDHHMMSS					
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTPIN** command:

#### 3.2.2.3. Software Protocol Watchdog

The **AT+GTDOG** command is used to reboot the device in a time based manner or upon ignition. This helps the device avoid working in an abnormal status for a long time. Besides these two automatic reboot methods, the device also supports the use of the digital input to trigger the reboot manually.

#### AT+GTDOG=

Example:						
AT+G	AT+GTDOG=gl320m,1,60,1,0200,,1,0,1,,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m		
2	Mode	1	0 1 2	1		
3	Ignition Frequency	<=3	10 - 120	60		
4	Reboot Interval	<=2	1 - 30	7		
5	Reboot Time	4	ннмм	0200		
6	Reserved	0				
7	Report Before Reboot	1	0 1	1		
8	Input ID	1	0 1	0		
9	Unit	1	0 1	0		
10	Reserved	0				
11	Reserved	0				
12	Reserved	0				
13	Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
14	Tail Character	1	\$	\$		



- 0: Disable this function.
- 1: Reboot periodically according to the *<Interval>* and *<Time>* settings.
- 2: Reboot when the ignition is turned on.
- <Ignition Frequency>: If the time interval between two ignitions is greater than the specified value when the working mode is 2, the device will automatically reboot upon ignition on. If the function is enabled for the first time, the device will reboot at next ignition even if the interval is less than the value set in Ignition Frequency.

- <Report Before Reboot>: Whether to report the +RESP:GTDOG message before reboot. 0 means "Do not report the +RESP:GTDOG message before reboot", and 1 means "Report the +RESP:GTDOG message before reboot". If this parameter is enabled, the device will obtain a real-time location and send it to the server.
- <Input ID>: The ID of the digital input port which is used to trigger the reboot manually. 0 means "Do not use manual reboot". Only port 1 is supported.
  - <Unit>: The unit of the <Interval> value.
    - 0: Day.

 $\diamond$ 

• 1: Hour.

The acknowledgment message of the AT+GTDOG command:

Example: +ACK:GTDOG,C30203,015181001707687,,0049,20200806071358,0069\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Serial Number	4	(HEX)		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

#### 3.2.2.4. Time Adjustment

The command AT+GTTMA is used to adjust local time.

#### > AT+GTTMA=

Example:				
AT+GTTMA=gl320m,+,0,0,0,,,,,,FFFF\$				
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	



2	Sign	1	+/-	+
3	Hour Offset	<=2	0 - 12	00
4	Minute Offset	<=2	0 - 59	00
5	Daylight Saving	1	0 1	0
6	UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
7	Reserved			
8	Reserved	0		
9	Reserved	0		
10	Reserved	0		
11	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
12	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- ♦ <Sign>: It indicates the positive or negative offset of the local time from UTC time.
- ♦ <Hour Offset>: The UTC offset in hours.

. ....

- ♦ <*Minute Offset*>: The UTC offset in minutes.
- - 0: Disable daylight saving time.
  - 1: Enable daylight saving time.
- ♦ <UTC Time>: UTC time used to adjust the local time.

The acknowledgement message of the **AT+GTTMA** command:

> +ACK:GTTMA,						
Example:						
+ACK:GTTMA,C30203,01	15181001707687,,	004A,20200806071451,006A\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time	Send Time 14 YYYYMMDDHHMMSS					
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

#### 3.2.2.5. Non-movement Detection

The **AT+GTNMD** command is used to configure the parameters for non-movement detection.

> A	> AT+GTNMD=				
Exam	Example:				
AT+G	TNMD=gl320m,0,2,3,2,5,5,2,3	3,0,0,1,,,FFFF\$			
SN	SN Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default				
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m	



			<u>.</u>	
2	Mode	1	0 - F	0
3	Non-movement Duration	<=3	1 - 255 (*14sec)	2
4	Movement Duration	<=2	1 - 50 (*128ms)	3
5	Movement Threshold	1	2 - 9	2
6	Fix Interval at Rest	5	1 - 86400(sec)	300
7	Send Interval at Rest	5	5 - 86400(sec)	300
8	PM Rest Threshold	1	2 - 9	2
9	PM Motion Threshold	1	2 - 9	3
10	URC Report	1	0 1	0
11	Enter Movement by	1	0 1	0
	Command			
12	NMD Report Mode	1	1-3	2
13	Reserved	0		
14	Reserved	0		
15	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
16	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

<Mode>: A hex numeral to determine how the function works. Each bit of the hex numeral indicates different actions the device can perform. If a bit is 1, the device will perform the corresponding action as described below.

Bit 0 (1): Suspend the report of FRI and Geo-fence when it detects non-movement.

Bit 1 (2): Report the message **+RESP:GTNMR** to the backend server when it detects non-movement.

Bit 2 (4): Report the message **+RESP:GTNMR** to the backend server when it detects movement.

Bit 3 (8): Change the fix interval and send interval of FRI to <*Rest Fix Interval*> and <*Rest Send Interval*> when it detects non-movement.

- <Non-movement Duration>: A time parameter to determine whether the device enters non-movement status. If the motion sensor detects that the device stays in non-movement status for a period of time specified by <Non-movement Duration>, the device will be considered to be in non-movement status.
- *<Movement Threshold>*: The threshold for the motion sensor to determine whether the device is in movement state. The smaller the value is, the easier it will be for the device to be considered to enter the state of movement.
- <Fix Interval at Rest>: The fix interval for the report of FRI when the device is in rest state and Bit 3 of <Mode> is 1.
- Send Interval at Rest>: The send interval for the report of FRI when the device is in rest state and Bit 3 of <Mode> is 1.



- *<PM Rest Threshold>*: The threshold for the EBK motion sensor to determine whether the EBK enters non-movement state.
- *<PM Motion Threshold>*: The threshold for the EBK motion sensor to determine whether the EBK enters movement state.
- ♦ <URC Report>: Enable or disable outputting sensor state through URC.
  - 0: Do not output the sensor's state to UART.
  - 1: Output a URC to UART to indicate the state change. "SENSOR:REST" means "State changing from MOTION to REST". "SENSOR:MOTION" means "State changing from REST to MOTION".
- <Enter Movement by Command>: A numeral to indicate whether to force the device to enter movement state after receiving the AT+GTRTO command with subcommand RTL or getting state update in AT+GTLSW from EBK.
  - 0: Do not change motion state after receiving the commands.
  - 1: Force the device to enter movement state after receiving one of the commands.
- ♦ <Report Mode>: A numeral to indicate the way of reporting GPS location of +RESP:GTNMD.
  - 1: Report the last fixed position.
  - 2:Report the current position.
  - 3: Report the last fixed position immediately, and then turn on GPS to get the current position and report position information again.

The acknowledgement message of the AT+GTNMD command:

➤ +ACK:GTNMD,						
Example:						
+ACK:GTNMD,C30203,0	15181001707687,,	,004B,20200806071610,006B\$				
Parameter	Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default					
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time 14 YYYYMMDDHHMMSS						
Count Number 4 (HEX)						
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

#### 3.2.2.6. Function Key Setting

The **AT+GTFKS** command is used to configure the functions of the power key and the function key.

#### > AT+GTFKS=

Example:				
AT+GTFKS=gl320m,0,1,0,0,0,3,3,4,4,3,FFFF\$				
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	



2	Power Key Mode	1	0 1 2	1
3	Full Power On	1	0 1 2	1
4	Function Key Mode	1	0 1 2 3 4 5	3
5	Power Key Indication	0	0 1	0
6	Function Key Indication	0	0 1	0
7	SOS Report Mode	1	1 2 3	3
8	First Trigger Time	<=2	1 - 99s	3
9	Second Trigger Time	<=2	1 - 99s	4
10	First Trigger Event	1	0 - 4	4
11	Second Trigger Event	1	0 - 4	3
12	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
13	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <Power Key Mode>: A numeral to indicate the working mode of the power key.

- 0: Pressing power key will not power off the device.
- 1: Pressing power key will power off the device.
- 2: Long pressing power key to activate the SOS mode.
- <Full Power On>: A numeral to indicate whether the terminal powers on completely after charger is inserted.
  - 0: Do not power on the terminal completely. And the terminal will only be charged.
  - 1: Power on the terminal completely. The terminal will work as normally as it is powered on by long pressing the power key.
  - 2: Pure charging mode. Whenever the charger is inserted, the device will enter charging status (5-mins delay) and the device can only be powered on after removing the charger and pressing the power key.
- ♦ <Function Key Mode>: The working mode for the function key operation.
  - 0: Ignore the function key operation.
  - 1: Geo-fence mode. Enable/disable the Geo-fence ID 0 when the function key is long pressed. After the function key is long pressed, the terminal will report the message
     +RESP:GTSWG to inform whether to enable or disable Geo-Fence ID 0 .
  - 2: Geo-fence around the current position. Enable/disable the Geo-fence ID 0 when the function key is long pressed and use the current position as the center of Geo-fence ID 0. After the function key is long pressed, the terminal will report the message +RESP:GTSWG immediately. If this operation is expected to enable Geo-fence ID 0, the terminal will start GPS fixing to get the current position as the center of Geo-fence ID 0. After GPS fixing finishes, the terminal will report the message +RESP:GTGCR to indicate the GPS fix result and whether Geo-fence ID 0 has been enabled successfully.
  - 3: SOS mode. When the function key is long pressed, the device will report the current position according to the result of the latest GPS fix and then start GPS fixing. After the GPS fixing finishes or timeout expires, the device will report the SOS message according to the GPS fix result.
  - 4: Location mode. After long press, the device will report a location report "**+RESP**: **GTLOC**" to the backend server with the real time position.



- 5: Mixed mode. The device will report different message defined by <*First Trigger Event>* and <*Second Trigger Event>* after pressing for the time set by <*First Trigger Time>*, or <*Second Trigger Time>*.
- <Power Key Indication>: A numeral to indicate the working mode of the motor for power key operation.
  - 0: Disable the motor when the power key is long pressed.
  - 1: Enable the motor to vibrate when the power key is long pressed.
- *<Function Key Indication>*: A numeral to indicate the working mode of the motor for function key operation.
  - 0: Disable the motor when the function key is long pressed.
  - 1: Enable the motor to vibrate when the function key is long pressed.
- - 1: Report only the last GPS location immediately after SOS event is triggered.
  - 2: Try to report the current GPS location after SOS event is triggered.
  - 3: Report the last GPS location immediately after SOS event is triggered and then tries to get the current GPS location to report.
- <First Trigger Time>: For function key's mixed mode, this is a numeric to indicate the time (second) before triggering the first trigger event after the function key is pressed, and if <Function Key Indication> is enabled, the motor will vibration once. For function key's other modes, this is a numeric to indicate the long press time (second).
- Second Trigger Time>: A numeric to indicate the time (second) before triggering the second trigger event after the function key is pressed, this time must be longer than <*First Trigger Time>*, and if <*Function Key Indication>* is enabled, the motor will vibration twice. The parameter is valid only when <*Function Key Mode>* is set to 5 (Mixed mode).
- <First Trigger Event>: Event to trigger after function key is pressed for <First Trigger Time> and the <Function Key Mode> is set to 5 (Mixed mode).
  - 0: Ignore the function key operation
  - 1: Geo-fence mode
  - 2: Geo-fence around current position
  - 3: Send a SOS message to back server
  - 4: Send a **+RESP: GTLOC** to back server
- Second Trigger Event>: Event to trigger after function key is pressed for <Second Trigger Time> and the <Function Key Mode> is set to 5 (Mixed mode).
  - 0: Ignore the function key operation
  - 1: Geo-fence mode
  - 2: Geo-fence around current position
  - 3: Send a SOS message to back server
  - 4: Send a **+RESP:GTLOC** to back server

The acknowledgement message of the **AT+GTFKS** command:

+ACK:GTFKS,

Example:					
+ACK:GTFKS,C30203,015181001707687,,004C,20200806071635,006C\$					
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		



Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

#### 3.2.2.7. Network Selection

AT. CTNITC-

The **AT+GTNTS** command is used to set network selection when the signal is weak.

P AI+GINIS=						
Example:						
AT+GTNTS=gl320m,(	AT+GTNTS=gl320m,0,,,,,,,,,FFFF\$					
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	gl320m			
Enable	1	0 1	0			
Reserved	0					
Reserved	0					
Allowed Oper1	10					
Allowed Oper2	10					
Allowed Oper3	10					
Reserved	0					
Blocked Oper1	10					
Blocked Oper2	10					
Blocked Oper3	10					
Reserved	0					
Serial number	4	(HEX)				
Tail character	1	\$	\$			

*<Enable>*: Enable or disable "NTS" based functionality.

- 0: Disable
- 1: Enable
- ♦ <Allowed Oper1>: The first network to select.
- ♦ <Allowed Oper2>: The second network to select.
- ♦ <Allowed Oper3>: The third network to select.
- $\diamond$  *Slocked Oper1*: The network that is refused to be selected.
- ♦ <Blocked Oper2>: The network that is refused to be selected.
- ♦ <Blocked Oper3>: The network that is refused to be selected.

**Note**: To enable this function, enable <Manual Netreg> in AT+GTSRI first. The operator info in <Allowed Oper> must be different from <Blocked Oper>.



+ACK:GTNTS

 $\triangleright$ 

Example: +ACK:GTNTS,C30203,015181001707687,,004F,20200806071850,006E\$				
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default				
Protocol version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Serial number	4	(HEX)		
Send time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count number	4	(HEX)		
Tail character	1	\$	\$	

The acknowledgment message of AT+ GTNTS command:

#### 3.2.2.8. Outside Working Hours

To protect the privacy of the drivers when they are off duty, the device can be configured to report empty location information outside working hours. The command **AT+GTOWH** is used to define the working hours and the working mode. When this function is enabled, the device will report empty latitude, empty longitude, empty Cell ID, empty LAC, empty MCC and empty MNC in all the messages except **+RESP:GTSOS**.

#### > AT+GTOWH=

Examp	Example:				
AT+GTOWH=gl320m,0,1F,0900,1200,1300,1800,,,0,0,,,,,,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', ' <u>·</u> ', '_'	gl320m	
2	Mode	1	0 1 2 3	0	
3	Day of Work	<=2	0 - 7F	1F	
4	Working Hours Start1	4	ННММ	0900	
5	Working Hours End1	4	ННММ	1200	
6	Working Hours Start2	4	ННММ	1300	
7	Working Hours End2	4	ННММ	1800	
8	Reserved	0			
9	Reserved	0			
10	Digital Input ID	1	0 1	0	
11	RF Sleep Mode	0	0 1	0	
12	Reserved	0			
13	Reserved	0			
14	Reserved	0			
15	Reserved	0			
16	Reserved	0			



17	Reserved	0		
18	Reserved	0		
19	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
20	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <*Mode*>: The working mode of this function.

- 0: Disable this function.
- 1: Manual start mode. In this mode, location information will be hidden under two conditions: the device works at outside the working hours and digital input is triggered.
- 2: Full manual mode. In this mode, location information will be hidden under the following condition: the digital input is triggered.
- 3: Automatic mode. In this mode, location information will be hidden under the following condition: the device works at outside the working hours.
- <Day of Work>: It specifies the working days in a week in bitwise manner.
  - Bit 0 for Monday
  - Bit 1 for Tuesday
  - Bit 2 for Wednesday
  - Bit 3 for Thursday
  - Bit 4 for Friday
  - Bit 5 for Saturday
  - Bit 6 for Sunday

For each bit, 0 means "off duty day", and 1 means "working day".

- «Working Hours Start1», «Working Hours End1»: The first period of the working hours in a day.
- *<Working Hours Start2>, <Working Hours End2>*: The second period of the working hours in a day.
- ♦ <*RF Sleep Mode*>: The working mode of this function.
  - 0: Do not shut down radio.
  - 1: Shut down radio.

The acknowledgment message of AT+ GTOWH command:

Example:						
+ACK:GTOWH,C30203,0	015181001707687,,	004F,20200806071850,006E\$				
Parameter	Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default					
Protocol version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device name <=20 '0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'						
Serial number	4	(HEX)				
Send time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				

LACK CTOWN



Count number	4	(HEX)	
Tail character	1	\$	\$

#### 3.2.2.9. Binding SIM Card

The AT+GTSIM command is used to bind SIM card. If the current SIM card is replaced by another SIM card, it works according to the mode and triggers operation according to the value of <Operation Mask>.

$\succ$	> AT+GTSIM =					
Exam	Example:					
AT+G	TSIM=gl320m,0,,0,,	,,,,,,,,FFFF\$				
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
1	Password	4 – 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	gl320m		
2	ICCID Mode	1	0 1 2 3	0		
3	ICCID	20				
4	Operation Mask	<=8	0-FFFFFFF	1		
5	Reserved	0				
6	Reserved	0				
7	Reserved	0				
8	Reserved	0				
9	Reserved	0				
10	Reserved	0				
11	Reserved	0				
12	Reserved	0				
13	Reserved	0				
	Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF			
	Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

♦ < Mode>: A numeral which indicates whether to bind SIM card.

- O: Do not bind SIM card.
- 1: Bind the current SIM card.
- 2: Bind the specified SIM card through ICCID.
- 3: Bind the SIM card and lock. In this mode, after ICCID is bound and locked, AT+GTSIM command cannot be used any more. If the ICCID is given in parameter </CCID>, the given ICCID will be bound. If the parameter </CCID> is empty, the current SIM card will be bound.
- $\diamond$  <*ICCID*>: The ICCID of the SIM card to be bound.
- $\diamond$ <Operation Mask>: Bitwise mask to configure which operation will be trigged while current



SIM card is replaced by another SIM card.

• Bit 0: Unregister to the network.

The acknowledgment message of AT+ GTSIM command:

#### ➤ +ACK:GTSIM

Example:					
+ACK:GTSIM,C30203,01	.5181001707687,,0	04F,20200806071850,006E\$			
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default					
Protocol version	6	(HEX)			
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)			
Device name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'			
Serial number	4	(HEX)			
Send time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS			
Count number	4	(HEX)			
Tail character	1	\$	\$		

### 3.2.2.10. Fixed Report Information

The command **AT+GTFRI** is used to configure the parameters for scheduled report.

#### > AT+GTFRI=

Exam	Example:						
AT+G	AT+GTFRI=gl320m,1,0,,,0000,0000,1,5,180,180,,65535,500,0,10,1000,5,10,00,FFFF\$						
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m			
2	Mode	1	0 1 2 3 4 5 6	0			
3	Discard No Fix	1	0 1	1			
4	Reserved	0					
5	Reserved	0					
6	Begin Time	4	ннмм	0000			
7	End Time	4	ннмм	0000			
8	Check Interval	<=5	1 - 86400(sec)	180			
9	Send Interval	<=5	1 - 86400(sec)	180			
10	Ignition Check Interval	<=5	1 - 86400(sec)	180			
11	Ignition Send Interval	<=5	1 - 86400(sec)	180			
12	Reserved	0					
13	Distance	<=5	5 - 65535m	1000			
14	Mileage	<=5	5 - 65535m	1000			
15	Movement Detection	1	0 1	0			
	Mode						
16	Movement Speed	<=3	1 - 999((km/h))	5			
17	Movement Distance	<=4	1 - 9999(m)	50			

18	Movement Send Number	1	1 - 5	5
19	Corner	3	0 - 180	0
20	ERI Mask	8	00000000 - FFFFFFFF	0000000
21	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
22	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- - 0: Disable the fixed report function.
  - 1: Enable the fixed time report.
  - 2: Enable the fixed distance report. The device reports its position each time the linear distance that the device has moved exceeds the specified distance. It ignores the specific path the device has passed along. This function is valid only when the GPS chip keeps working. Unit: Meter.
  - 3: Enable the fixed mileage report. The device reports its position each time the path length that the device has moved exceeds the specified length. It calculates the length of the path the device has passed along. This function is valid only when the GPS chip keeps working. Unit: Meter.
  - 4: Optimum Report. The device simultaneously checks both time interval and path length between two adjacent reports. Device position will be reported if the calculated time interval between the current time and the time of last report is greater than the *<Send Interval>*, and the length of path between the current position and the last position is greater than the *<Mileage>*. In order for the function to work, *<GPS on Need>* must be 0 (Do not turn off GPS chip) or 2 (Do not turn off GPS chip in ignition on state or movement state).
  - 5: Reserved.
  - 6: Fixed Time or Mileage Report. The device checks either time interval or path length between two adjacent position reports. Device position will be reported if the calculated time interval between the current time and the time of last report is greater than the *<Send Interval>*, or the length of path between the current position and the last position is greater than the *<Mileage>*.
- Coiscard No Fix>: 0 means "Report last known GPS position if there is no GPS fix", and 1 means "Do not send position information if there is no GPS fix".
- *<Begin Time>*: The start time of scheduled report. The valid format is "HHMM". The value range of "HH" is "00"-"23". The value range of "MM" is "00"-"59". Please note that system time is used here.
- <Check Interval>: The time interval for GPS fix when the device attached vehicle is ignition off.
- Send Interval>: The interval to send the position information when the device attached vehicle is ignition off.
- <Ignition Check Interval>: The time interval for GPS fix when the device attached vehicle is ignition on.
- </p



device attached vehicle is ignition on.

- Constance>: The specified distance for sending the position information when <Mode> is 2 and this parameter is valid only when GPS chip keeps working. Unit: meter.
- </p
- ♦ <Movement Detection Mode>: Enable or disable the movement detection function.
  - 0: Disable the movement detection function.
  - 1: Enable the movement detection function. The device is considered to be in non-movement state if the speed shown in the GPS fix result is less than *<Movement Speed>* and the distance between the current GPS position and the last GPS position is less than *<Movement Distance>*. If the device is considered to be in non-movement state, it will report FRI messages (speed field is shown as 1 in these messages) *<Movement Send Number>* times at most.
- *Another Speed*: The speed threshold for movement detection. The unit is (km/h).
- ♦ <Movement Distance>: The distance threshold for movement detection. The unit is meter.
- <Corner>: A numeral to indicate whether to report the +RESP:GTFRI message according to the heading change, i.e. the change of the device's movement direction.
  - 0: Disable the function. Do not detect whether the device has changed its direction.
  - 1-180: The angle is used to determine whether the device is turning around. If the heading change is greater than the specified value, the device will be considered to be turning around. Unit: degree.
- <ERI Mask>: When the serial port is connected to a peripheral, and the bit for this peripheral is set to 1, the device will report +RESP:GTERI instead of +RESP:GTFRI. This mask is used to configure whether to report the data from peripherals by +RESP:GTERI.
  - Bit 7 for <External Battery Percent> field in the report of +RESP:GTERI.
  - Bit 8 for <Temperature> field in the report of +RESP:GTERI.
  - Bit 11 for <SV Count> field in the report of +RESP:GTERI.
  - Bit 12 for <CSQ RSSI> field in the report of **+RESP:GTERI**.
  - Bit 13 for the <*RAT and Band Data*> field in +**RESP:GTERI.** RAT means Radio Access Technology.

#### Note:

#### **Check Interval**

If *<GPS* on *Need>* is set to 1 or *<GPS* on *Need>* is set to 2 without ignition on, according to the value of *<Check Interval>*, the GPS module has two working modes:

- Mode 1: If the *<Check Interval>* is greater than 60 seconds, the terminal will turn off the GPS chip every time after GPS fix finishes in order to save power.
- Mode 2: If the *<Check Interval>* is less than 60 seconds, the terminal will not turn off the GPS chip.

Due to the length limit of the message, make sure that the *Send Interval*/*Check Interval* ratio is no more than 15. If the limit is exceeded, the command will be discarded and the previous settings will be kept unchanged.



If the terminal is in "Force on SMS" (*Report Mode*> = 5) and the *Send Interval*/*Check Interval*> ratio is greater than 1, the terminal will report only the last position in the fixed time report. This is because only one position could be filled in a single SMS message (160 bytes at most).

#### Working Time of FRI Report

- <*Begin Time*> < <*End Time*>: The FRI report function works in the time period (Begin Time, End Time) every day.
- <Begin Time> > <End Time>: The FRI report function works from <Begin Time> and at <End Time> on the following day.
- *<Begin Time>* = *<End Time>*: The FRI report function works the whole day.

#### Scheduled Report Mode

For fixed distance report, fixed mileage report and optimum report, *<GPS on Need>* must be 0 (Do not turn off GPS chip) or 2 (Do not turn off GPS chip in ignition on state or movement state). For the fixed time report, it doesn't matter whether GPS keeps working.

#### **Corner Report**

Set *<GPS on Need>* to 0 or 2 to detect turning point. If not, the detection for turning point may not be so accurate and may lead to error in detecting turning point.

The acknowledgement message of the AT+GTFRI command:

Example: +ACK:GTFRI,C30203,015181001707687,,0051,20200806072058,006F\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

#### +ACK:GTFRI,

#### 3.2.2.11. Serial Port Setting

The serial port of the device is used to connect with external devices to extend the application of the device. The command **AT+GTURT** is used to configure the parameters for serial port communication.

#### AT+GTURT=

Example:
AT+GTURT=gl320m,,12,8,1,0,,,,,0018\$


SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
1	Password	4 – 6	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z'	GI320m
2	Reserved	0		0
3	Baudrate Index	<=2	5 12	12
4	Reserved			
5	Reserved			
6	Reserved			
7	Reserved			
8	Reserved			
9	Reserved			
10	Reserved			
	Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF	
	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

Baudrate Index	Baudrate
5	9600
12	115200

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTURT** command:

# ➤ +ACK:GTURT,

Example: +ACK:GTURT,C30203,864475045328613,,0018,20210420082720,6AD8\$						
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	XX0000 – XXFFFF, X∈{'A' – 'Z','0' – '9'}				
Unique ID	15	IMEI				
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'				
Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	0000 – FFFF				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			



## 3.2.2.12. Automatic APN Changeover

Command **AT+GTAAC** is used to set automatic APN changeover function.

#### > AT+GTAAC=

Exai AT+	Example: AT+GTAAC=gl320m,0,,,FFFF\$						
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
1	Password	4 – 6	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z'	Gl320m			
2	Mode	1	0 1 2	0			
3	Reserved						
4	Reserved						
	Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF				
	Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

#### $\diamond$ <Mode>:

0: disable AT+GTAAC.

1: enable AT+GTAAC. The "free" APN is not limited. That is, the "free" APN(s) is applicable to any PLMN(s) or empty PLMN(s) set inside the Command IDs of AT+GTAPN.

2: enable AT+GTAAC. The "free" APN is limited. That is, the "free" APN(s) is only applicable to empty PLMN(s) set inside the Command IDs of AT+GTAPN or other PLMN(s) that are not set inside the list.

**Note:** "free" APN means that, for any specific Command ID of AT+GTAPN, if only the APN (s) is set, no PLMN(s) is set, this APN is "free" and not linked to any PLMN. For example, for each of the Command ID 0-7 in AT+GTAPN, all are only with APN set, no PLMN is set, then all 8 APNs are "free" APNs, the device will try all these 8 APNs one by one no matter what SIM card is inserted. And if the user sets both PLMN and APN inside a specific Command ID, it means to link this APN to only this PLMN.

**Note:** 1. Please enable <Manual Netreg> in AT+GTBSI first to use the AT+GTAAC function.

2. Please note that once AT+GTAAC is enabled, the APN set inside AT+GTBSI will be invalid. The device will only try to use the APNs set inside AT+GTAAC.

3. Please enable AT+GTAAC with extreme care and properly configure AT+GTAPN first. Otherwise, the device might not be able to get registered caused by wrong APN setting.

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTAAC** command:

# > +ACK:GTAAC, Example: +ACK:GTAAC,C30203,864475045328613,,0018,20210420082720,6AD8\$ Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default



Protocol Version	6	XX0000 – XXFFFF, X∈{'A' – 'Z','0' – '9'}	
Unique ID	15	IMEI	
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'	
Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	0000 – FFFF	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

#### 3.2.2.13. Automatic APN List

Command **AT+GTAPN** is used to set a list of APNs for the device to try when **AT+GTAAC** is enabled.

#### > AT+GTAPN=

Exar AT+	Example: AT+GTAPN=gl320m,0,0,000123,321,567,,,,,,FFFF\$						
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
1	Password	4 - 6	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z'	GI320m			
2	Command ID	1	0-7				
3	Mode	1	0 1	0			
4	PLMN	5 - 6	00000-999999				
5	APN	<=40	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '.'				
6	APN User Name	<=30					
7	APN Password	<=30					
8	Reserved	0					
9	Reserved	0					
10	Reserved	0					
11	Reserved	0					
	Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF				
	Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

 $\diamond$ 

<Command ID>: A numeral to identify the GTAPN.

♦ <*Mode>:* Enable or disable this command ID.



 $\diamond$  <PLMN>: MCC+MNC.

+ACK:GTAPN,

- $\diamond$  < APN>: The access point name (APN).
- <APN User Name>: The APN user name. If the parameter field is empty, the current value of this parameter will be cleared.

 $\diamond$ 

 $\geq$ 

The acknowledgment message of the AT+GTAPN command:

Example: +ACK:GTAAS,C30203,864475045328613,,0018,20210420082720,6AD8\$						
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	XX0000 – XXFFFF, X ∈ {'A' – 'Z','0' – '9'}				
Unique ID	15	IMEI				
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'				
Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	0000 – FFFF				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

## 3.2.2.14. Jamming Detection

The command **AT+GTJDC** is used to configure the parameters for jamming detection. When the detection condition is matched, the device will report the **+RESP:GTJDR/+RESP:GTJDS** event message to the backend server according to the *<Mode>* setting.

~	AT. CTIDO
	AI+GIJDC=

Example: AT+GTJDC=gl320m,1,25,,5,10,10,,,,,,0016\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
1	Password	4 – 20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z'	gl320m	
2	Mode	1	0 1 2	0	
3	Jamming Level	1	1 2 3	2	
4	Reserved	0			
5	Reserved	0			



6	Enter Jamming Timer threshold	<=3	0-300 sec	10
7	Ouit Jamming Timer Threshold	<=4	0-3600 sec	10
8	Reserved	0		
9	Reserved	0		
10	Reserved	0		
11	Reserved	0		
12	Reserved	0		
13	Reserved	0		
14	Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF	
15	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- ♦ <*Mode*>: The working mode of the jamming detection function.
  - 0: Disable jamming detection function.
  - 1: Enable jamming detection function: If jamming is detected, the device will report the **+RESP:GTJDR** message upon entering into "jamming" status.
  - 2: Enable jamming detection function. If jamming is detected, the device will report the **+RESP:GTJDS** message upon entering into or quitting "jamming" status.
- Summing Level>: If the signal is stronger than Jamming Level for over 15s, the device will enter "jamming".
  - 1: Low Jamming. As long as the interference exceeds 15 seconds in current environment, jamming report will be generated.
  - 2: Medium Jamming. When interference causes the loss of network registration, jamming report will be generated.
    - 3: High Jamming. When interference causes the loss of network registration and still unable to search any network for a while, then jamming report will be generated.
- <Enter Jamming Timer Threshold>: If the device detects jamming, the device will trigger the "enter jamming" event based on <Enter Jamming Timer Threshold>.
- <Quit Jamming Timer Threshold>: If the device quits the jamming status, the device will trigger the "quit jamming" event based on <Quit Jamming Timer Threshold>.

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTJDC** command:

➢ +ACK:GTJDC,					
Example: +ACK:GTJDC,301303,860599004785994,,0030,20190920101748,0015\$					
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)			
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)			



Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

## **3.2.3.** Position Related Reports

## 3.2.4. Alarm Settings

## 3.2.4.1. Geo-fence Information

The command **AT+GTGEO** is used to configure the parameters of Geo-fence. Geo-fence is a virtual perimeter around a geographic area using a location-based service. When the terminal enters or exits the area, a notification is generated. The notification contains information about the location of the terminal.

#### > AT+GTGEO=

Example:							
AT+G	AT+GTGEO=gl320m,0,1,114.015821,22.537364,50,30,0,,,,,,FFFF\$						
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '_', '_'	gl320m			
2	GEO ID	<=2	0 - 19				
3	Mode	1	0 - 3	0			
4	Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX				
5	Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX				
6	Radius	<=7	25 - 6000000(m)	50			
7	Check Interval	<=5	0 - 86400(sec)	0			
8	State Mode	1	0 1	0			
9	Reserved	0					
10	Reserved	0					
11	Reserved	0					
12	Reserved	0					
13	Reserved	0					
14	Reserved	0					
15	Reserved	0					
16	Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
17	Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

♦ <GEO ID>: A numeral to identify the Geo-fence.



- ♦ <*Mode*>: A numeral which indicates when to report the notification to the backend server:
  - 0: Disable the Geo-fence on the specified GEO ID.
  - 1: Reports when entering the Geo-fence.
  - 2: Reports when leaving the Geo-fence.
  - 3: Reports when entering or leaving the Geo-fence.
- <Longitude>: The longitude of a point which is defined as the centre of the circular Geo-fence region. The format is "(-)XXX.XXXXX" and the value range is from "-180.000000" to "180.000000". The unit is degree. West longitude is represented as a negative value starting with the minus sign "-" and east longitude is represented as a positive value without "+".
- <Latitude>: The latitude of a point which is defined as the centre of the circular Geo-fence region. The format is "(-)XX.XXXXX" and the value range is from "-90.000000" to "90.000000". The unit is degree. South latitude is represented as a negative value starting with the minus sign "-" and north latitude is represented as a positive value without "+".
- ♦ <Check Interval>: The checking interval for the Geo-fence alarm.
- ♦ <State Mode>: A numeral to indicate the mode of reporting the device's state.
  - 0: The device should report its state when getting the state for the first time.
  - 1: The device doesn't report its state until the state changes.

**Note:** If the parameter *<Check Interval>* is set to 0, *<Mode>* will be set to 0 automatically (For Geo-fence ID 0, *<Mode>* will be restored first so it could be used later when Geo-Fence ID 0 is enabled via Function Key). This is because the terminal doesn't know when to check Geo-fence if the parameter *<Check Interval>* is 0.

The acknowledgement message of the AT+GTGEO command:

## ➤ +ACK:GTGEO,

Example:						
+ACK:GTGEO,C30203,015181001707687,,0,0058,20200806072259,0074\$						
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
GEO ID	1	0 - 19				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

## 3.2.4.2. Speed Alarm

The **AT+GTSPD** command is used to configure the speed alarm function of the device. Based on the working mode setting, the device will report speed alarm when its speed is outside or inside



a predefined range.

#### > AT+GTSPD=

Example:						
AT+G	AT+GTSPD=gl320m,0,0,0,60,300,,,,,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m		
2	Mode	1	0 1 2 3 4	0		
3	Min. Speed	<=3	0 - 400(km/h)	0		
4	Max. Speed	<=3	0 - 400(km/h)	0		
5	Valid Time	<=4	15 - 3600(sec)	60		
6	Send Interval	<=4	0 5 - 3600(sec)	300		
7	Reserved	0				
8	Reserved	0				
9	Reserved	0				
10	Reserved	0				
11	Reserved	0				
12	Reserved	0				
13	Reserved	0				
14	Reserved	0				
15	Reserved	0				
16	Reserved	0				
17	Reserved	0				
18	Reserved	0				
19	Reserved	0				
20	Reserved	0				
21	Reserved	0				
22	Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
23	Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

<Mode>: A numeral to indicate the working modes of speed alarm.

- 0: Disable speed alarm.
- 1: Enable speed alarm. If the current speed is within the speed range defined by <*Min. Speed>* and <*Max. Speed>*, a speed alarm is sent.
- 2: Enable speed alarm. If the current speed is outside the speed range defined by <*Min. Speed>* and <*Max. Speed>*, a speed alarm is sent.
- 3: Enable when current speed is within or outside the range.
- 4: Enable when current speed changes from inside to outside of from outside to inside of the speed range.
- ♦ <*Min. Speed*>: The lower limit of the speed range.
- $\diamond$  <Valid Time>: If the speed is in a specified speed range and is maintained for a period of



time specified by <Valid Time>, the speed alarm will be triggered.

Send Interval>: If the speed alarm is triggered, the speed alarm message will be sent periodically according to <Send Interval>. If the send interval is set to 0, the speed alarm message will be sent only once.

**Note:** The parameters *<Valid>* and *<Send Interval>* are invalid when the GPS is on need. The device will report speed alarm immediately when the speed of the terminal is detected to be outside the allowed speed range.

The acknowledgement message of the **AT+GTSPD** command:

#### ➤ +ACK:GTSPD,

Example:						
Parameter         Length (Byte)         Range/Format         Default						
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

## 3.2.4.3. Temperature Alarm

The **AT+GTTEM** command is used to configure the temperature alarm function of the device. Based on the working mode, the device will report temperature alarm when its temperature is outside or inside a predefined range.

## AT+GTTEM=

Examp	Example:				
AT+GTTEM=gl320m,0,0,0,60,300,,,,,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m	
			· · · · ·		
2	Mode	1	0 1 2 3 4	0	
3	Min. Temperature	<=3	-20(℃) - 60(℃)	0	
4	Max. Temperature	<=3	-20(℃) - 60(℃)	0	
5	Duration	<=4	0 - 3600(sec)	60	
6	Send Interval	<=4	0 5 - 3600(sec)	300	
7	Reserved	0			
8	Reserved	0			
9	Reserved	0			
10	Reserved	0			



11	Reserved	0		
12	Reserved	0		
13	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
14	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- 0: Disable this function.
- 1: Report the alarm message **+RESP:GTTEM** when the current temperature is lower than the temperature specified by *<Min. Temperature>*.
- 2: Report the alarm message **+RESP:GTTEM** when the current temperature is inside the temperature range.
- 3: Report the alarm message **+RESP:GTTEM** when the current temperature is higher than the temperature specified by *<Max. Temperature>*.
- 4: Report the alarm message **+RESP:GTTEM** when current temperature within or outside the range. In this mode, the <Send Interval> is invalid, the temperature alarm message will be sent only once.
- ♦ <*Min. Temperature*>: The lower limit of the temperature range.
- ♦ <Max. Temperature>: The upper limit of the temperature range.
- *< > Couration>*: If the temperature is in the specified temperature range and is maintained for a period of time specified by *<Duration>*, the temperature alarm will be triggered.
- Send Interval>: If the temperature alarm is triggered, the temperature alarm message will be sent periodically according to <Send Interval>. If the <Send Interval> is set to 0, the temperature alarm message will be sent only once.

The acknowledgment message of the AT+GTTEM command:

## +ACK:GTTEM,

Example:						
+ACK:GTTEM,C30203,015181001707687,,006E,20200806072819,0097\$						
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-',				
		· · · -				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

## 3.2.4.4. Motion Sensor Alarm

The **AT+GTMSA** command is used to configure the motion sensor to detect fall accidents and report alarm.



## > AT+GTMSA=

Example:						
AT+G	AT+GTMSA=gl320m,1,1,5,5,,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m		
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
2	Mode	1	0 1	0		
3	Send Last Position	1	0 1	1		
4	Sensitivity	<=2	1-10	5		
5	Alarm Timeout	<=2	5-10(second)	5		
6	Reserved	0				
7	Reserved	0				
8	Reserved	0				
9	Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
10	Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

♦ <*Mode>*: The working mode of the motion sensor.

- 0: Disable this function.
- 1: Get a location fix and then send **+RESP:GTMSA** with the current position to the backend server and an SMS with a Google Map link to the numbers according to the settings of AT+GTGLM if a fall accident is detected.
- <Send Last Position>: The device sends +RESP:GTLGL with the last known GNSS position before sending +RESP:GTMSA.
  - 0: Disable this feature.
  - 1: Enable this feature.
- *<Sensitivity>*: The sensitivity of the sensor, with a total of 10 levels. The smaller the value, the mode sensitive the detection will be.
- </p

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTMSA** command:

+ACK:GTMSA,				
Example:				
+ACK:GTMSA,C30203,01518	31001707687,,006	5E,20200906072819,0097\$		
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-',		
		<i>( )</i> -		
Serial Number	4	(HEX)		

Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

## 3.2.4.5. Harsh Behavior Monitoring

The command **AT+GTHBM** is used to monitor the harsh driver behavior based on GNSS when the device is in moving state or ignition on state. (This function requires setting the "GPS on Need" in AT+GTCFG to 2)

## > AT+GTHBM=

Exa AT+	Example: AT+GTHBM=gl320m,1,3,,100,21,6,,60,21,6,,,21,15,,,,,,,0010\$				
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
1	Password	4 - 6	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z'	gl320m	
2	Mode	1	0   1	0	
3	Behavior Duration	1	3-5	3	
4	Reserved	0			
5	High Speed	<=3	100-400km/h	100	
6	∆Vhb	<=3	0-100km/h	0	
7	riangleVha	<=3	0-100km/h	0	
8	Reserved	0			
9	Medium Speed	<=3	20-100km/h	60	
10	∆Vmb	<=3	0-100km/h	0	
11	△Vma	<=3	0-100km/h	0	
12	Reserved	0			
13	Reserved	0			
14	∆Vlb	<=3	0-100km/h	0	
15	△Vla	<=3	0-100km/h	0	
16	Reserved	0			
17	Reserved	0			
18	Reserved	0			
19	Reserved	0			



20	Reserved	0		
21	Reserved	0		
22	Reserved	0		
23	Reserved	0		
24	Reserved	0		
25	Serial Number	4	0000 – FFFF	
26	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- ♦ <Mode>: The working mode of the harsh behavior monitoring function.
  - 0: Disable this function
  - 1: Enable this function, detected by GNSS only. In this mode, two harsh behaviors are monitored, i.e. harsh braking and harsh acceleration.
    - According to the speed read

from GNSS, 3 levels of speed are defined including high speed, medium speed and low speed. For each speed level, 2 thresholds of speed change are defined to determine harsh braking and harsh acceleration. If the change of speed within 5 seconds is greater than the corresponding threshold, the device will report the **+RESP:GTHBM** message to the backend server to indicate the harsh behavior. The same harsh behavior within 30 seconds will only be reported once if only GNSS is used to measure harsh driving behavior.

- <Behavior Duration>: Speed change within <Behavior Duration> is measured for monitoring harsh behavior. Unit: second
- <High Speed>, <Medium Speed>: If the last known speed of the device read from GNSS is greater than or equal to <High Speed>, the vehicle that the device is attached to is considere d to be at high speed. If the last known speed is less than <High Speed> but greater than or equal to <Medium Speed>, the vehicle is considered to be at medium speed.
   If the last known speed is less than <Medium Speed>, the vehicle is considered to be at low speed.
- AVhb>: The threshold for harsh braking at high speed level. If the current speed is less than the last known speed and the change of the speed is greater than or equal to this value within 5 seconds, harsh braking is detected at high speed level. If it is set to 0, it means "Do not monitor harsh braking behavior at high speed level".
- Chapter Vha>: The threshold for harsh acceleration at high speed level. If the current speed is greater than the last known speed and the change of the speed is greater than or equal to this value within 5 seconds, harsh acceleration is detected at high speed level. If it is set to 0, it means "Do not monitor harsh acceleration behavior at high speed level".
- ◇ <△Vmb>: The threshold for harsh braking at medium speed level. If the current speed is less than the last known speed and the change of the speed is greater than or equal to this value within 5 seconds, harsh braking is detected at medium speed level. If it is set to 0, it means "Do not monitor harsh braking behavior at medium speed level".
- $\diamond$  < $\triangle$ Vma>: The threshold for harsh acceleration at medium speed level. If the current speed



is greater than the last known speed and the change of the speed is greater than or equal to this value within 5 seconds, harsh acceleration is detected at medium speed level. If it is set to 0, it means "Do not monitor harsh acceleration behavior at medium speed level".

- ◇ <△Vlb>: The threshold for harsh braking at low speed level. If the current speed is less than the last known speed and the change of the speed is greater than or equal to this value within 5 seconds, harsh braking is detected at low speed level. If it is set to 0, it means "Do not monitor harsh braking behavior at low speed level".
- ◇ <△VIa>: The threshold for harsh acceleration at low speed level. If the current speed is greater than the last known speed and the change of the speed is greater than or equal to this value within 5 seconds, harsh acceleration is detected at low speed level. If it is set to 0, it means "Do not monitor harsh acceleration behavior at low speed level".

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTHBM** command:

Example: +ACK:GTHBM,301303,860599004785994,,0036,20190920102001,001B\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	IMEI	
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

## ➤ +ACK:GTHBM,

## 3.2.5. IO Application

#### 3.2.5.1. Digital Input Port Settings

#### AT+GTDIS

Example:							
AT+G1	AT+GTDIS=gl320m,1,0,5,2,,,,,FFFF\$						
SN	N Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default						
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m			
2	Input ID	1	1	1			
3	Mode	1	0 1 2 3	0			
4	Debounce Time	<=2	0 - 20 (*10ms)	5			



5	Report Mode	1	1 2	2
6	Reserved	0		
7	Reserved	0		
8	Reserved	0		
9	Reserved	0		
10	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
11	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <Input ID>: The ID of the digital input. It is always 1.

- - 0: Disable the digital input. The status change of the digital input will be ignored.
  - 1: Enable the digital input. If the status of the input changes, the device will report the message **+RESP:GTDIS** to the backend server to indicate the latest status.
  - 2: If the status of the input is changed to 0, the device will disable the sleep mode. If the status of the input is changed to 1, the device will enable the sleep mode.
  - 3: If the status of the input is changed to 0, the SOS event will be triggered.
- ♦ <Debounce Time>: The time for the input to debounce.
- ♦ <Report Mode>: A numeral to indicate the way of reporting GPS location in +RESP:GTDIS.
  - 1: Report the last fixed position.
  - 2: Report the current position.

The acknowledgment message of the AT+GTDIS command:

#### ➤ +ACK:GTDIS,

Example: +ACK:GTDIS,C30203,015181001707687,,006F,20200806072848,0099\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

#### 3.2.6. Other Settings

## 3.2.6.1. Real Time Operation

The **AT+GTRTO** command is used to retrieve information from the terminal or control the terminal to execute certain actions.

#### > AT+GTRTO=

Example:



AT+GTRTO=gl320m,0,,,,,FFFF\$				
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
2	Sub Command	<=2	0 - F 14 1C	
3	Single Command	3	0000000000000000 -	
	Configuration   Configurat		FFFFFFFFFFFFFF	
	ion Mask ATI Mask			
4	Output Direction	1	0-3	
5	Reserved	0		
6	Reserved	0		
7	Sub Command Parameter	<=1		
8	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
9	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

Sub Command>: A numeral to indicate the sub command to be executed.

- 0: (**GPS**): Request GPS related information, including settings of *<GPS on Need>*, *<Report Item Mask>*, *<Report Mask>* of fixed report, GPS antenna type, GPS antenna status and the time of last known successful GPS fix.
- 1: (RTL): Request the device to report its current position.
- 2: (**READ**): Request the device to report its entire configuration.
- 3: (REBOOT): Reboot the device remotely.
- 4: (**RESET**): Reset the parameters to factory settings (or default settings) and clear all buffered messages.
- 5: (PWROFF): Power off the device remotely.
- 6: (CID): Request the device to report the ICCID of the installed SIM card.
- 7: (CSQ): Request the device to report the current network signal level.
- 8: (VER): Request the device to report version information including the device type, the firmware version, and the hardware version.
- 9: (**BAT**): Request the device to report power supply related information including the external power supply status, the current voltage of the battery, the battery charging status and the working mode of LED.
- A: (TMZ): Request the device to report the time zone setting.
- B: (INF): Request the device information report. The corresponding information will be reported via the message **+RESP:GTINF**.
- C: (GIR): Get cell information via report +RESP:GTGSM.
- D: (AIF): Get APN, ICCID, base station ID, RSSI, cell ID, IP and DNS server network type via **+RESP:GTAIF.**
- E: (**GSV**): Request the device to report the GPS fix level. The corresponding information will be reported via the message **+RESP:GTGSV**
- 14: (DELBUF): Delete all the buffered reports.
- 1C: (ATI): Get the detailed device version information.
- Single Command Configuration/Configuration Mask/ATI Mask>:
  - > AT Command: To get a single AT command's configuration when <*Sub Command*> is set



to 2, follow the format in the following example. For example, to get the configuration of **AT+GTFRI**, please set AT+GTRTO=gl320m,2,FRI,,,,,0015\$, and get it via **+RESP:GTALS**.

- Configuration Mask: If <Sub Command> is set to 2, the configuration information of the specified <Configuration Mask> can be obtained via the message +RESP:GTALC. The Configuration Mask must be 16 bytes. If it's less than 16 bytes, '0' will be added in the high bytes of the Configuration Mask.
- If <Sub Command> is set to 2, and this parameter field is left empty, the device will report all the configurations via +RESP:GTALC.
- If <Sub Command> is set to 1C, the information will be reported via the message +RESP:GTATI according to chosen <ATI Mask>.
- <Output Direction>: This parameter determines the destination that the response message of the **RTO** command will be reported to. This field is invalid for *<Sub Command>* 2(READ), 3(REBOOT), 4(RESET) and 5(PWROFF).
  - 0: The message will be output to the backend server.
  - 1: The message will be output to the main serial port.
  - 2: Reserved.
  - 3: If the command is received via SMS, the message will be output to the original SMS number.

## Configuration Mask Table:

Mask Bit	Item
Bit 63	Reserved
Bit 62	Reserved
Bit 61	Reserved
Bit 60	CMD
	Reserved
Bit 48	UDF
	Reserved
Bit 47	APN
	Reserved
Bit 45	AAC
	Reserved
Bit27	RPC
Bit26	JDC
Bit25	НВМ
Bit24	URT
Bit 23	SIM



Bit 22	NTS
Bit 21	MSA
Bit 20	Reserved
Bit 19	Reserved
Bit 18	GAM
Bit 17	PDS
Bit 16	UPC
Bit 15	TEM
Bit 14	WLT
Bit 13	DOG
Bit 12	OWH
Bit 11	PIN
Bit 10	GLM
Bit 9	FKS
Bit 8	NMD
Bit 7	SPD
Bit 6	GEO
Bit 5	FRI
Bit 4	TMZ
Bit 3	DIS
Bit 2	CFG
Bit 1	SRI
Bit 0	BSI

ATI Mask Table:

Mask Bit	Item
Bit 4	Modem Software Version
Bit 3	Modem Hardware Version
Bit 2	MCU Bootloader Version
Bit 1	MCU Hardware Version
Bit 0	MCU Firmware Version

Sub Command Parameter>: This parameter is used for part of the sub commands. This field



cannot be empty for the sub-commands listed below.

For the sub command RESET (4):

• 0: Light. Reset all configuration parameters, except:

(1) Network-related configuration (APN, server IP, server port, network mode, etc.).

(2) Device password.

(3) Local time calibration (GTTMA).

- 1: Heavy. Reset all configuration parameters.
- Others: only to reset one command, such as for "FRI", AT+GTFRI command will be reset.

Supports the following commands:

Number	Command
1	BSI
2	SRI
3	CFG
4	PIN
5	DOG
6	ТМА
7	NMD
8	FKS
9	NTS
10	OWH
11	SIM
12	URT
13	JDC
14	AAC
15	APN
16	FRI
17	GEO
18	SPD
19	TEM
20	MSA
21	НВМ
22	DIS



23	WLT
24	GLM
25	UPC
26	PDS
27	GAM
28	CMD
29	UDF
30	FVR
31	RPC
32	UPD

The acknowledgement message of the **AT+GTRTO** command:

 $\geq$ +ACK:GTRTO,

Example:				
+ACK:GTRTO,C30203,015181001707687,,READ,0070,20200806073020,009F\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Sub Command	<=6	Sub command string		
Serial Number	4	(HEX)		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

## 3.2.6.2. Data Transfer Between UART and Backend Server

The AT+GTDAT command is used to transfer data between UART and the backend server.

> A	> AT+GTDAT=					
Examp	Example:					
AT+G1	[DAT=gl320m,0,,,0,,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m		
			· <u>·</u> , · ·			
2	Command Type	1	0 1	0		
3	Reserved	0				
4	Data	<=200	(ASCII)			



5	Need Ack	1	0 1	0
6	Reserved	0		
7	Reserved	0		
8	Reserved	0		
9	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
10	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- ♦ <Command Type>: A numeral to indicate the way to transfer data.
  - 0: The data should be transferred from UART to the backend server.
  - 1: The data should be transferred from the backend server to UART.
- $\diamond$  *<Data>*: The data to be transferred. It should be a printable ASCII string.
- *<Need ACK>*: A numeral to indicate whether the device should reply +ACK message to the backend server.
  - 0: Do not send **+ACK:GTDAT** to the backend server.
  - 1: Send **+ACK:GTDAT** to the backend server.

The acknowledgment message of the AT+GTDAT command:

#### +ACK:GTDAT,

Example:						
+ACK:GTDAT,C30203,01	15181001707687,,	0072,20200806073156,00A7\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

#### 3.2.6.3. White Number List Configuration

The **AT+GTWLT** command is used to set up the white number list.

#### > AT+GTWLT=

Example: AT+GTWLT=gl320m.1.1.1FFFFS							
SN	SN         Parameter         Length (Byte)         Range/Format         Default						
1	Password	4 - 20	ʻ0ʻ - ʻ9ʻ, ʻa' - ʻz', ʻA' - ʻZ', ʻ-', ʻ_'	gl320m			
2	Number Filter	1	0 1 2 3	1			
3	Phone Number Start	1	1 - 10				
4	Phone Number End	1	1 - 10				



5	White Number List	<=20*10		
6	Reserved	0		
7	Reserved	0		
8	Reserved	0		
9	Reserved	0		
10	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
11	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- <Number Filter>: A numeral to indicate whether to filter the original number according to <White Number List> and <Direct Number List> before sending an SMS with a Google Maps link to the original number.
  - 0:Do not return a Google Maps link via SMS to the original number. Ignore the event of **Position Request** message received no matter whether the original number is in the *<White Number List>* or *<Direct Number List>* or not.
  - 1: Do not filter the original number. It will return a Google Maps link via SMS to the original number as long as it receives **Position Request** message.
  - 2: Filter the original number. If the original number isn't in <White Number List> ,
     <Direct Number List>, the device won't return a Google Maps link to the original number even if the device receives Position Request message via SMS.
  - 3: Filter the original number when receiving AT+GTXXX command from SMS. If the original number isn't in White Number list>, <Direct Number List> or <SMS Gateway> in AT+GTSRI, the device won't return a Google Maps link to the original number even if the device receives Position Request message or any other AT+GTXXX commands via SMS.

Note: The <SMS Gateway> in AT+GTSRI will not be filtered by mode 2 and mode 3.

- <Phone Number Start>: A numeral to indicate the first index of the White Number List numbers to be input. For example, if it is 1, the device will update the White Number List from the 1st number. If it is empty, there should be no <White Number List>.
- <Phone Number End>: A numeral to indicate the last index of the White Number List numbers to be input. For example, if it is 2, the device will update the whitelist numbers until the 2nd one. If it is empty, there should be no <White Number List>.
- *<White Number List>*: A white number list of phone numbers. Two adjacent phone numbers are separated with ",". The number of the phone numbers in the list is determined by the parameters *<Phone Number Start>* and *<Phone Number End>*. For example, if *<Phone Number Start>* is **1** and *<Phone Number End>* is **2**, the *<White Number List>* should include **2** phone numbers and the two numbers are separated by ",".

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTWLT** command:

+ACK:GTWLT					
Example:					
+ACK:GTWLT,C30203,02	+ACK:GTWLT,C30203,015181001707687,,0086,20200806073850,00C3\$				
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default					
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)			



Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

Note: Make sure the size of the command is not greater than 160 bytes if it is sent via SMS.

#### 3.2.6.4. Settings for SMS with Google Maps Link

The **AT+GTGLM** command is used to configure whether to send an SMS with a Google Maps link for SOS and GEO events.

$\geqslant$	AT+GTGLM=
-	

Example:							
AT+G	AT+GTGLM=gl320m,1,1,1,,,,,,FFFF\$						
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m			
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
2	Google Mode	1	0 1 2	0			
3	Phone Number Start	1	1 - 3				
4	Phone Number End	1	1 - 3				
5	Direct Number List	<=20*3					
6	Reserved	0					
7	Reserved	0					
8	Reserved	0					
9	Reserved	0					
10	Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
11	Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

<Google Mode>: A numeral to indicate whether to send an SMS with a Google Maps link to the number in <*Direct Number List*> for MSA, SOS and GEO events.

- 0:Do not send an SMS with a Google Maps link to the number in the *<Direct Number List>* for MSA, SOS and GEO events.
- 1:Send an SMS with a Google Maps link including the terminal name to the number in the *<Direct Number List>* for MSA, SOS and GEO events.
- 2: Send an SMS with a Google Maps link not including the terminal name to the number in the *<Direct Number List>* for MSA, SOS and GEO events.
- <Phone Number Start>: A numeral to indicate the first index of the direct numbers to be input. For example, if it is 1, the device will update the direct number list from the 1st number. If it is empty, there should be no <Direct Number List>.
- *Phone Number End*: A numeral to indicate the last index of the direct numbers to be input.



For example, if it is **2**, the device will update the direct number list until the **2**nd one. If it is empty, there should be no *<Direct Number List>*.

Cirect Number List>: A list of phone numbers. Two adjacent phone numbers are separated with ",". The number of the phone numbers in the list is determined by the parameters 
Phone Number Start> and <Phone Number End>. For example, if <Phone Number Start> is 1 and <Phone Number End> is 2, the <Direct Number List> should include 2 phone numbers and the two numbers are separated by ",".

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTGLM** command:

## ➤ +ACK:GTGLM,

Example: +ACK:GTGLM.C30203.0151810017076870073.20200806073241.00AB\$					
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default					
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)			
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)			
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'			
Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS			
Count Number	4	(HEX)			
Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

## 3.2.6.5. Over-the-Air Configuration Update

The **AT+GTUPC** command is used to download configuration file over the air for the update of the local configuration.

## > AT+GTUPC=

Exam	Example:				
AT+G	TUPC=gl320m,0,10,0,1,0,ł	nttp://218.17.46.11:9	180/gl320m/deltabin/2	L234.ini,1,,,,FFFF	
\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' -	gl320m	
			'Z'		
2	Max Download Retries	1	0 - 3	0	
3	Download Timeout	<=2	5 - 30(min)	10	
4	Download Protocol	1	0	0	
5	Enable Report	1	0 1	0	
6	Update Interval	1	0 - 8760	0	
7	Download URL	<=100	URL		
8	Mode	1	0 1	0	
9	Reserved	0			
10	Reserved	0			



11	Reserved	0		
12	Serial Number	4	0000 - FFFF	
13	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- <Password>: The valid characters for the password include '0'-'9', 'a'-'z', and 'A'-'Z'. The default value is "gl320m".
- </p
- Cownload Timeout>: If downloading is not finished within this time, it will be regarded that the downloading failed.
- *<Download Protocol>*: The protocol used to download the file. Only HTTP is supported now. It is set to 0.
- - 0:Do not report the message **+RESP:GTUPC**.
  - 1: Report the message +RESP:GTUPC.
- < <Download URL>: It specifies the URL to download the configuration file. If the URL ends with "/", it means it is a path without any file name. <(IMEI)>.ini will be added as the file name at the end of URL.
- *<Mode>*: A numeral to indicate the working mode of downloading configuration over the air.
  - 0: Disable this function.
  - 1: Enable this function.

The acknowledgement message of the AT+GTUPC command:

## +ACK:GTUPC

Example:					
+ACK:GTUPC,C30203,01	5181001707687,,0	074,20200806073419,00B0\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)			
Unique ID	15	IMEI			
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'			
Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS			
Count Number	4	(HEX)			
Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

Note:

- If the <Download URL> ends with "/", it means it is a path without any file name.
   <(IMEI)>.ini will be added as the file name at the end of URL. If it is larger than 100, an error will be reported.
- (2) The maximum size of configuration file is 32\*200 bytes. If the size of configuration file is larger than 32\*200 bytes, configuration file cannot be downloaded.



- (3) The length of a command should not exceed 200 bytes in the configuration file.
- (4) Make sure there's only one command per line in the configuration file and there should be a "\r\n" between each command.

## 3.2.6.6. Preserve Device Special Logical State

The command **AT+GTPDS** is used to preserve special logic state of the terminal. Enable the function according to the working mode, and save the logic state according to the value of the *<Mask>*.

## > AT+GTPDS=

Example: AT+GTPDS=gl320m,1,69,,,,,,FFFF\$						
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9' 'a' - 'z' 'A' - 'Z'	gl320m		
2	Mode	1	0 1 2	1		
3	Mask	<=6	0-7FFFFF	69		
4	Reserved					
5	Reserved					
6	Reserved					
7	Reserved					
8	Reserved					
9	Reserved					
10	Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
11	Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

*<Mode>*: The working mode of the AT+GTPDS command.

- 0: Disable this function.
- 1: Preserve special logic state of the device according to the value of the *<Mask>*.
- 2: Reset all the special logical states listed in the *<Mask>* after receiving the command, and then preserve special logic state of the device according to the value of the *<Mask>*.
- - Bit 0: States of GEO
  - Bit 1: Device reset type. The device will not send +RESP:GTPFA/+RESP:GTPFL or +RESP:GTPNA/+RESP:GTPNL messages when rebooted by RTO or DOG.
  - Bit2: Reserved
  - Bit 3: Information of last known position
  - Bit 4: Current device state, including ignition state and motion state



- Bit 5: State of external power supply
- Bit 6: State of charging
- Bit7: State of digital inputs
- Bit20: State in the command **AT+GTLSW** from EBK
- Bit21: State in the command AT+GTTSW from EBK
- Bit22: State in the command AT+GTOMS from EBK

The acknowledgment message of the AT+GTPDS command:

<ul> <li>+ACK:GTPDS,</li> </ul>					
Example: +ACK:GTPDS,C30203,015181001707687,,0075,20200806073507,00B4\$					
Parameter	Length (Byte	e) Range/Format	Default		
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)			
Unique ID	15	IMEI			
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'			
Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS			
Count Number	4	(HEX)			
Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

#### 3.2.6.7. Remote Control of Vibration Motor

The command **AT+GTRVC** command is used to switch ON/OFF the onboard vibration motor remotely by using command sent from a remote server or via SMS message.

# > AT+GTRVC=

Example: AT+GTRVC=gl310m,1,1000,200,3,1,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9' 'a' - 'z' 'A' - 'Z'	gl320m	
2	Mode	1	0-1	0	
3	ON Duration	<=5	0-60000	1000	
4	OFF Duration	<=5	0-60000	1000	
5	Repeats	<=2	0-10	1	
6	Acknowledgment	1	0-1	1	
7	Reserved	0			
8	Reserved	0			



Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- ♦ <Mode>: A numeral to indicate the working mode of controlling the motor vibration.
  - 0: Disable motor vibration.
  - 1: Enable motor vibration.
- <ON Duration>: The vibration motor is set to be inactive by default. The motor becomes active after receiving the AT+GTRVC command to set up ON Duration and is switched off after the duration. It can be set to a value in the range of 0-60000ms. The maximum value is 1 minute (60000ms).
- <OFF Duration>: The length of pause between two vibrations. In case of <Repeats> is set, it is the time between the repeats. It can be set to a value in the range of 0-60000ms. The maximum value is 1 minute (60000ms).
- <Repeats>: A repeat cycle is composed of two time periods: ON duration and OFF duration. The value can be adjusted between 0-10 repeats. The default value is 1. If the parameter is set to 0, the device will ignore the settings of <OFF Duration> and <ON Duration>, and keep vibrating.
- - 0: Do not send an acknowledgement report.
  - 1: Send an acknowledgement report.

The acknowledgment message of the AT+GTRVC command:

$\succ$	+ACK:GTRVC.
-	

Example: +ACK:GTRVC,C30203,015181001707687,,0075,20200806073507,00B4\$					
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)			
Unique ID	15	IMEI			
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'			
Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS			
Count Number	4	(HEX)			
Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

#### 3.2.6.8. GPS-Assisted Motion Measurement

The command AT+GTGAM is used for assisting in measuring motion with GPS if the sensor detects motionless state while the vehicle is ignition on.

> AT+GTGAM=



Example: AT+GTGAM=gl320m,1,1,25,10,60,60,,,,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length(byte)	Range/Format	Default	
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9' 'a' - 'z' 'A' - 'Z'	gl320m	
2	Mode	1	0 1	1	
3	Speed Mode	1	0 1	1	
4	Motion Speed Threshold	<=2	0 - 50(km/h)	25	
5	Motion Cumulative Time	<=3	10 - 100(sec)	10	
6	Motionless Cumulative Time	<=3	10 - 250(sec)	60	
7	GPS Fix Failure Timeout	<=4	5 - 1800(sec)	60	
8	Reserved	0			
9	Reserved	0			
10	Reserved	0			
11	Reserved	0			
	Serial Number	4	(HEX)		
	Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

♦ <Mode>: The working mode of the GPS-assisted motion measurement function.

- 0: Disable this function.
- 1: Enable this function.
- ♦ <Speed Mode>: It combines with GPS speed to measure the status of movement.
  - 0: Disable the function.
  - 1: Enable the function.
- < <Motion Cumulative Time>: If the average speed in <Motion Cumulative Time> is higher than <Motion Speed Threshold>, the device is considered to be in motion status.
- Motionless Cumulative Time>: If the average speed in <Motionless Cumulative Time> is lower than <Motion Speed Threshold>, the device is considered to be in motionless status.
- <GPS Fix Failure Timeout>: If the time of GPS fix is more than <GPS Fix Failure Timeout>, the device will update motion status by motion sensor again.

The acknowledgment message of the AT+GTGAM command:

► +ACK:GTGAM,

#### Example:

+ACK:GTGAM,C30203,015181001707687,,0087,20200806073959,00C6\$



Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

## 3.2.6.9. Command String Storage

The **AT+GTCMD** command is used to store the commands which will be used by the command **AT+GTUDF**.

$\triangleright$	$\Delta T + GTCMD =$
-	ALIGICIMD-

Exa AT+	Example: AT+GTCMD=gl320m,1,0,AT+CFUN=4,,,,,FFFF\$					
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
1	Password	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	gl320m		
2	Mode	1	0 - 1	0		
3	Stored cmd ID	3	0 - 31			
4	Command String	200	AT command			
5	Reserved	0				
6	Reserved	0				
7	Reserved	0				
8	Reserved	0				
9	Serial Number	4	(HEX)			
10	Tail Character	1	\$	\$		

- ♦ <*Mode*>: The treating method of the command string.
  - 0: Delete the stored command.
  - 1: Add the stored command.
- $\diamond$  <*Command String*>: The whole content of the stored command. The command should end



with '\$'.

#### ➤ +ACK:GTCMD,

Example:						
+ACK:GTCMD,C30203,01	5181001707687,,	0079,20200806073622,00B8\$				
Parameter	Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default					
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	IMEI				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

## 3.2.6.10. User Defined Function

The **AT+GTUDF** command is used to bind input events and the stored commands. The input events will trigger the corresponding stored commands.

#### > AT+GTUDF=

Example:						
AT+GTUDF=gl320m,1,0,1000000000,0,0,0,1,0,,,,,FFFF\$						
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	gl320m			
Mode	1	0 - 2	0			
Group ID	2	0 - 31				
Input ID Mask	16	0 - FFFFFFFFFFFFFF				
Debounce Time	5	0 - 86400(s)	0			
Inzizo Mask	5	0 - FFFFF	0			
Outzizo Mask	5	0 - FFFFF	0			
Stocmd ID Mask	16	0 - FFFFFFFFFFFFFF				
Stocmd Ack	1	0 1	0			
Reserved						
Reserved						
Reserved						
Reserved						
Serial Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

- 0: Disable the group.
- 1: Enable the group.



- 2: Delete the group.

Bit 0 (0000001):	Select ID1
Bit 1 (0000002):	Select ID2
Bit 2 (00000004):	Select ID3
Bit 3 (0000008):	Select ID4
For example:	
Dit (0000000)	

Bit (0000003): Select ID1, and ID2

Bit (0000017): Select ID1, ID2, ID3, and ID5

ID	Mask Bit	Item
1	Bit 0	Power on finished
2	Bit 1	Ignition on
3	Bit 2	Ignition off
4	Bit 3	The PDP connection is attached
5	Bit 4	The PDP connection is not attached
6	Bit 5	The network is registered
7	Bit 6	The network is not registered
8	Bit 7	Network roaming
9	Bit 8	Network non-roaming
10	Bit 9	SIM card is locked
11	Bit 10	GPS is turned on
12	Bit 11	GPS is turned off
13	Bit 12	The device is stationary
14	Bit 13	The device is moving
15	Bit 14	External charger inserted
16	Bit 15	No external charger
17	Bit 16	The device is charging
18	Bit 17	The device is not charging
19	Bit 18	External battery inserted
20	Bit 19	No external battery
21	Bit 20	Digital input 1 is low
22	Bit 21	Digital input 1 is high
23	Bit 22	SIM card is inserted
24	Bit 23	SIM card is not inserted
25	Bit 24	SIM card is failure
26	Bit 25	Reserved
27	Bit 26	Reserved
28	Bit 27	Reserved
29	Bit 28	Reserved
30	Bit 29	Reserved



31	Bit 30	Reserved
32	Bit 31	Reserved
33	Bit 32	Reserved
34	Bit 33	Reserved
35	Bit 34	Reserved
36	Bit 35	Reserved
37	Bit 36	Inside the speed range
38	Bit 37	Outside the speed range
39	Bit 38	Messages need to be sent
40	Bit 39	No messages need to be sent
41	Bit 40	SOS event
42	Bit 41	Reserved
43	Bit 42	Outside-working-hours Event
44	Bit 43	Inside-working-hours Event

ID	Mask Bit	Item
1	Bit 0	Inside the Geo 0
2	Bit 1	Inside the Geo 1
3	Bit 2	Inside the Geo 2
4	Bit 3	Inside the Geo 3
5	Bit 4	Inside the Geo 4
6	Bit 5	Inside the Geo 5
7	Bit 6	Inside the Geo 6
8	Bit 7	Inside the Geo 7
9	Bit 8	Inside the Geo 8
10	Bit 9	Inside the Geo 9
11	Bit 10	Inside the Geo 10
12	Bit 11	Inside the Geo 11
13	Bit 12	Inside the Geo 12
14	Bit 13	Inside the Geo 13
15	Bit 14	Inside the Geo 14
16	Bit 15	Inside the Geo 15
17	Bit 16	Inside the Geo 16
18	Bit 17	Inside the Geo 17
19	Bit 18	Inside the Geo 18
20	Bit 19	Inside the Geo 19

♦ <Outzizo Mask>: The bitwise masks to indicate the input events outside the Geo-fence.

ID Mask Bit	Item
-------------	------



-		
1	Bit 0	Outside the Geo 0
2	Bit 1	Outside the Geo 1
3	Bit 2	Outside the Geo 2
4	Bit 3	Outside the Geo 3
5	Bit 4	Outside the Geo 4
6	Bit 5	Outside the Geo 5
7	Bit 6	Outside the Geo 6
8	Bit 7	Outside the Geo 7
9	Bit 8	Outside the Geo 8
10	Bit 9	Outside the Geo 9
11	Bit 10	Outside the Geo 10
12	Bit 11	Outside the Geo 11
13	Bit 12	Outside the Geo 12
14	Bit 13	Outside the Geo 13
15	Bit 14	Outside the Geo 14
16	Bit 15	Outside the Geo 15
17	Bit 16	Outside the Geo 16
18	Bit 17	Outside the Geo 17
19	Bit 18	Outside the Geo 18
20	Bit 19	Outside the Geo 19

Note: If the <*Inzizo Mask>* or <*Outzizo Mask>* is set to 0, please check Bit 26 - Bit 35 in <*Input ID Mask>*.

- Stocmd ID Mask>: The bitwise masks of the stored command which will be executed after the state of the group becomes true (i.e. input events included in the group occur).
- - 0: Do not send an acknowledgement message after a stored command is executed.
  - 1: Send an acknowledgement message after a stored command is executed.

Note: Maximum 5 stored commands in a group will be executed.

The acknowledgement message of the AT+GTUDF command:

$\succ$	+ACK:GTUDF	

Example:			
+ACK:GTUDF,C30203,015181001707687,,007E,20200806073729,00BD\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	IMEI	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$



## 3.2.6.11. Report Control

The **AT+GTRPC** command is used to change the composition of message.

#### > AT+GTRPC=

Examp	Example:			
AT+G1	rrPC=gl320m,0000,,,,,,FFFF\$			
SN	Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
1	Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z',	gl320m
			· <u>·</u> , · ·	
2	Report Mask	4	0000 - 0001	0000
3	Reserved	1		
4	Reserved	0		
5	Reserved	0		
6	Reserved	0		
7	Reserved	0		
9	Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
10	Tail Character	1	\$	\$

∻

<Report Mask>: Bitwise report mask to configure the composition of message

• Bit 0 for <External Battery Percentage> and <Internal Battery Percentage>.

To control ASCII +RESP:GTBAT/BPL/FRI/DIS/DOG/GEO/HBM/IGL/NMR

/PFL/PNL/RTL/SOS/LOC/SPD. If this function is enabled, three more fields <Report Mask>, <External Battery Percentage> and <Internal Battery Percentage> will be added before the field of <Send Time> of these reports. If external battery is not inserted, <External Battery Percentage> will be empty.

For each bit, set it to 1 to enable corresponding component in the report and 0 to disable. **Note:** Enabling the *<Report Mask>* will make these reports have more fields and longer. If the server parser cannot support parsing of the reports with more fields. Please do not enable or use this function.

The acknowledgment message of the **AT+GTRPC** command:

Example:			
+ACK:GTRPC,C30203,01	5181001707687,,	0072,20200806073156,00A7\$	
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Serial Number	4	(HEX)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	

# ➤ +ACK:GTRPC,



Tail Character	1	\$	\$
----------------	---	----	----

#### **3.2.6.12. SMS Position Request**

This command can only be sent via SMS, and will enable the device to send SMS message with a Google Maps hyperlink of the current position immediately. Please refer to the Chapter 3.3.6 for details of the position report.

Command Format	get position
Example	get position

get position: It's a command string to request the current position.

## 3.3. Report

#### 3.3.1. Position Related Report

#### 3.3.1.1. General Position Report

- +RESP:GTGEO: The message for AT+GTGEO
- +RESP:GTSPD: The message for AT+GTSPD
- +RESP:GTSOS: The message after long pressing the function key if the function key is enabled and the mode is SOS mode
- +RESP:GTRTL: The message for AT+GTRTO-RTL
- > +RESP:GTPNL: The first location message after the device powers on
- +RESP:GTNMR: Non-movement is detected by motion sensor according to the setting of AT+GTNMD
- +RESP:GTDIS: The status change of digital input is detected if the parameter <*Enable*> is set to 1 in the command AT+GTDIS
- **+RESP:GTDOG:** The watchdog rebooting message
- **+RESP:GTIGL:** The location message for ignition on and ignition off
- +RESP:GTLOC: Current location message
- **+RESP:GTPFL**: The first location message after the device powers off.
- +RESP:GTHBM: If harsh behavior is detected, this message will be sent to the backend server.

#### Example:

+RESP:GTGEO,C30203,015181001707687,,0,1,1,1,0.0,0,123.3,114.015577,22.537246,202008 06074358,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,,100, 20200806074359,00E4\$

+RESP:GTSPD,C30203,015181001707687,,0,1,1,1,0.0,0,123.3,114.015577,22.537246, 20200806074739,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,,100,20190906074740,00F1\$

+RESP:GTSOS,C30203,015181001707687,,0,0,1,1,0.0,265,116.7,114.015807,22.537240, 20200806074855,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,,100, 20200806074855,00F8\$


+RESP:GTRTL,C30203,015181001707687,,37.1,00,1,1,0.0,0,110.1,114.015730,22.537218, 20200806075114,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,,100, 20200806075114,0105\$

+RESP:GTPNL,C30203,015181001707687,,0,0,1,1,0.0,0,208.4,114.015584,22.538731, 20200806083052,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,,100, 20200806083053,01CD\$

+RESP:GTNMR,C30203,015181001707687,,0,00,1,1,0.0,0,182.3,114.015301,22.537341, 20200806083306,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,,100, 20200806083307,01DA\$

+RESP:GTDOG,C30203,015181001707687,,0,0,1,1,0.0,0,70.1,114.015182,22.537003,2020080 8090041,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,,100,20200808090042,0784\$

+RESP:GTDIS,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,1,1,1,1,0.0,76,117.8,114.015473,22.537251, 20200811031617,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,0.0,100,20200811111618,004E\$

+RESP:GTIGL,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,0,0,1,2,0.0,76,110.1,114.015607,22.537200, 20200811031901,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,0.0,100,20200811111902,005F\$

+RESP:GTLOC,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,0,0,1,1,0.0,76,95.7,114.015303,22.537100,2 0200811032658,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,0.1,100,20200811112659,006F\$

+RESP:GTPFL,301303,860599004785994,,0,0,1,1,1.0,353,93.0,117.129283,31.838800,201909 23023722,0460,0000,550B,B969,,100,0001,20190923023722,0399\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Report ID	<=5	0 - 20 0.0 - 100.0	
Report Type	<=2	0 1 2 00 - FF	
Number	1	1	
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	

+RESP:GTHBM,301303,860599004785994,,1,0,1,0.0,2,76.2,117.129441,31.839031,20190923 024426,0460,0000,550B,B969,,100,0001,20190923024426,03AC\$



LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Battery Percentage	<=3	0 - 100	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- <Report ID>: Report ID is only for +RESP:GTGEO, +RESP:GTDIS, +RESP:GTRTL reports and +RESP:GTHBM, for +RESP:GTGEO report, it means the Group ID of the Geo-fence, for +RESP:GTDIS report, it means the digital input ID, for +RESP:GTRTL report, it means the temperature (range is 0.0 - 100.0), for +RESP:GTHBM report, it means the ID of speed level. For other reports, it is always 0.
  - For **+RESP:GTHBM**, the speed level at which the harsh behavior is detected in the message **+RESP:GTHBM**. "3" indicates high speed, "2" indicates medium speed and "1" indicates low speed.
- *<Report Type>*: Report Type is only for below reports. For other reports, it is always 0.
  - For **+RESP:GTGEO** 
    - 0: Exit the corresponding Geo-fence
    - 1: Enter the corresponding Geo-fence
  - For +RESP:GTSPD
    - 0: Outside the speed range
    - 1: Inside the speed range
  - For +RESP:GTNMR

The entering-movement trigger and the report type are in hex format. 4 high bits represent the entering-movement trigger and 4 low bits represent the report type. Entering-movement trigger defines the trigger of the message. There are three meanings as below:

- 0: Triggered by motion sensor detection (Default)
- 1: Triggered by the sub command RTL of RTO
- 2: Triggered by the command AT+GTLSW from EBK

Report type has two meanings below.

- 0: The state of the device changed from motion to rest
- 1: The state of the device changed from rest to motion
- For the **+RESP:GTDIS**, it is generated by the digital input.
  - 0: The current logic status of the input port is of low level.
  - 1: The current logic status of the input port is of high level.
- In the ignition on and ignition off message +RESP:GTIGL
  - 0: The engine is of ignition on.
  - 1: The engine is of ignition off.
- For +RESP:GTDOG

0: Reboot periodically according to the *<Interval>* and *<Time>* settings or upon ignition on or by *<Input ID>* 

• For **+RESP:GTSOS** and **+RESP:GTLOC** 



0: A normal report when <Function Key Mode> is not set to 5 (Mixed mode)
1: The first trigger report after the Function Key Button is pressed when <Function Key Mode> in the command AT+GTFKS is set to 5 (Mixed mode)
2: The second trigger report after the Function Key Button is pressed when <Function</li>

*Key Mode>* in the command AT+GTFKS is set to 5 (Mixed mode)

# • For +RESP:GTRTL

- 0: The status of the device changed from motion to rest.
- 1: The status of the device changed from rest to motion.
- For +RESP:GTHBM
  - 0: Harsh braking behavior

1: Harsh acceleration behavior

- </p
- <GPS Accuracy>: A numeral to indicate the GPS fix status and HDOP of the GPS position. 0 indicates the current GPS fix fails and the last known GPS position is used. A non-zero value (1 50) indicates the current GPS fix is successful and represents the HDOP of the current GPS position.
- $\diamond$  <*Speed*>: The speed read from GPS.
- $\diamond$  <*Azimuth*> The azimuth from GPS.
- ♦ <Altitude>: The height above sea level from GPS.
- <Longitude>: The longitude of the current position. The format is "(-)XXX.XXXXXX" and the value range is from "-180.000000" to "180.000000". The unit is degree. West longitude is represented as a negative value starting with the minus sign "-" and east longitude is represented as a positive value without "+".
- <Latitude>: The latitude of the current position. The format is "(-)XX.XXXXXX" and the value range is from "-90.000000" to "90.000000". The unit is degree. South latitude is represented as a negative value starting with the minus sign "-" and north latitude is represented as a positive value without "+".
- ♦ <GPS UTC Time>: UTC time from GPS.
- MCC>: Mobile country code. It is 3-digit in length and ranges from 000-999. If Bit 3 of the field <*Report Composition Mask*> in AT+GTCFG is not set to 1, the length of this field is 0 in ASCII format message.
- MNC>: Mobile network code. It is 3-digit in length and ranges from 000-999. If Bit 3 of the field <</p>
  Report Composition Mask> in AT+GTCFG is not set to 1, the length of this field is 0 in ASCII format message.
- ♦ <*Cell ID*>: Cell ID in hex format.
- <ODO Mileage>: The total mileage. If <Enable ODO> is set to 0 in the command AT+GTCFG, the field will be empty.
- ♦ <Battery Percentage>: The current volume of the battery in percentage.

# +RESP:GTFRI: Report of AT+GTFRI

Example:



+RESP:GTFRI,C30203,015181001707687,,0,0,1,0,0,0,123.3,114.015577,22.537246,2020080 6074209,0460,0000,27BD,0DFC,,100,20200806074337,00E3\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Report ID	1	0 - 4		
Report Type	<=2	0 1 16 17		
Number	<=2	1 - 15		
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50		
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)		
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359		
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)		
Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX		
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX		
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
MCC	0 4	OXXX		
MNC	0 4	OXXX		
LAC	0 4	(HEX)		
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)		
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)		
Battery Percentage	<=3	0 - 100		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

<Report Type>: The type of the messages +RESP:GTFRI

0: The message is a scheduled position report generated in REST state.

1: Reserve.

16: The message is a scheduled position report generated in MOTION state.

17: The message is a turning point report generated in MOTION state.

#### +RESP:GTERI: Report of AT+GTERI

If the **+RESP:GTERI** is enabled, the device will send the message **+RESP:GTERI** to the backend server.

Example: +RESP:GTERI,C30204,866833045604466,gl320m,00002180,0,0,1,1,0.0,0,108.9,113.948029,22 .573542,20221119030207,0460,0000,1D2D,0D6DA243,1234.3,100,,1,30.4,4,8,202211191102 29,3414\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	



Device Name		<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' -	
			'Z', '-', '_'	
ERI Mask		8	00000000 - FFFFFFFF	
Report ID		1	0 - 4	
Report Type		<=2	0 1 16 17	
Number of S	ensors	<=2	1 - 15	
GPS Accuracy	ý	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed		<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth		<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude		<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Longitude		<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Latitude		<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Tim	e	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
мсс		0 4	OXXX	
MNC		0 4	OXXX	
LAC		0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID		<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	5	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Battery Perce	entage	<=3	0 - 100	
External Batt	ery Percentage	<=3	0 - 100	
Temperat	Number of Sensors	<=2	0-10	
ure	Temperature in Celsius	<=5		
SV Count		<=2	0 - 99	
CSQ RSSI		<=2	0 - 31 99	
RAT and	RAT	<=2	0 1 3 4 5	
Band	Deved		0-39 850 900 1800 1	
Data		<=4	900	
Send Time		14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Numb	er	4	(HEX)	
Tail Characte	r	1	\$	\$

*<Report Type>*: The type of the report messages +RESP:GTERI

0: The message is a scheduled position report generated while in REST state. 1: Reserve.

16: The message is a scheduled position report generated while in MOTION state.

17: The message is a turning point report generated while in MOTION state.

<External Battery Percentage>: The percentage of the external battery. If Bit 7 of <ERI Mask> in AT+GTFRI is enabled, the part of <Extern Battery Percentage> will be displayed, otherwise, this part will not be displayed.

<Number of Sensors>: The number of temperature sensor, the default value is always 1 as the temperature is detected by the internal thermistor only. The following field <Temperature in Celsius> means the internal real time temperature of the device, If Bit 8 of <ERI Mask> in AT+GTFRI is enabled, the whole part of <Temperature> will be displayed, otherwise, this part will not be displayed.



- SV Count>: The count of satellites the GPS finds. If Bit 11 of <ERI Mask> in AT+GTFRI is enabled, the part of < SV Count> will be displayed, otherwise, this part will not be displayed.
- ♦ <Temperature in Celsius>: Temperature value in Celsius.
- ♦ <*RAT*>: Radio Access Technology.
  - 0: Invalid RAT
  - 1: 2G
  - 3: LTE CAT-M1
  - 4: LTE NBIOT

#### +RESP:GTMSA: Report of AT+GMSA

#### Example:

# +RESP:GTMSA,C30203,015181001708016,gl320m,0,0,1,1,0.0,0,431.4,114.017456,22.538930, 20200304083056,0460,0000,2493,16F9,0.0,100,31.7,20200304093857,02FC\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Report ID	1	0	
Report Type	1	0	
Number	1	1	
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Battery Percentage	<=3	0 - 100	
Temperature(optional)	<=5	(-)XX.X	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$



# 3.3.1.2. Location Request Report

➤ +RESP:GTLBC,

Example:						
+RESP:GTLBC,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,18126107340,1,0.0,0,223.6,114.015619,22.						
536907,20200811033923	536907,20200811033923,0460,0001,253D,AEC3,0.0,20200811113924,0088\$					
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Original Number	<=20	phone number				
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50				
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)				
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359				
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)				
Longitude	<=11	(-) XXX.XXXXXX				
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX				
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
MCC	0 4	OXXX				
MNC	0 4	OXXX				
LAC	0 4	(HEX)				
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)				
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS				
Count Number	4	(HEX)				
Tail Character	1	\$	\$			

♦ <Original Number>: The phone number which initiates this report.

#### 3.3.1.3. Location as Centre of Geo-Fence

If function key mode is set to 2 and function key is long pressed to switch on Geo-fence 0, the terminal will start GPS fixing to get the current position as the centre of Geo-fence 0. And after GPS fix finishes, the terminal will report the message **+RESP:GTGCR**.

#### +RESP:GTGCR,

Example:			
+RESP:GTGCR,C30203,01	5181001707687,g	1320m,3,50,30,1,0.0,0,128.8,114.01550	08,22.53719
6,20200811034634,0460,0001,253D,AEC3,0.1,20200811114635,009F\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	



Geo Mode	1	0 1 2 3	
Geo Radius	<=7	50 - 6000000(m)	
Geo Check Interval	<=5	0 - 86400(sec)	
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- <Geo Check Interval>: The check interval of Geo-fence 0. Please refer to the parameter <Check Interval> in the command AT+GTGEO.

#### 3.3.2. Device Information Report

+RESP:GTINF:

Example: +RESP:GTINF,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,42,89860117851087152093,16,99,1,0.1,,4.1 8,1,1,0,,,20200811034659,100,,36.7,,,20200811114700,00A0\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
State	2	21 22 41 42		
ICCID	20			
CSQ RSSI	<=2	0 - 31 99		

CSQ BER	<=2	0 - 7 99	
External Power Supply	1	0 1	
Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Reserved	0		
Battery Voltage	<=4	0.0 - 4.20V	
Charging	1	0 1	
LED On	1	0 - 2	
GPS On Need	1	0 1 2	
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Last GPS Fix UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Battery Percentage	<=3	0 - 100	
External Battery	<=3	0 - 100	
Percentage			
Temperature	<=5	(-)XX.X	
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <State>: The current motion state of the device.

- 21: The device attached vehicle is ignition on and motionless.
- 22: The device attached vehicle is ignition on and moving.
- 41: The device is motionless without ignition on.
- 42: The device is moving without ignition on.
- $\diamond$  <*ICCID*>: The ICCID of the installed SIM card.
- ♦ <CSQ RSSI>: The network signal strength level.
- ♦ <CSQ BER>: The quality of the network signal.
- ♦ <External Power Supply>: Whether the external power supply is connected.
  - 0: Not connected
  - 1: Connected
- </p
- ♦ <Charging>: Whether the battery is charging when the external power supply is connected.
  - 0: Not charging
  - 1: Charging
- ♦ <GPS on Need>: The setting of <GPS on Need> in AT+GTCFG.



#### ➤ +RESP:GTGSM:

Example:

+RESP:GTGSM,C30203,015181001708016,,FRI,0460,0000,2493,16F9,15,,0460,0000,2493,1465, -88,,0460,0000,2493,16FA,-88,,0460,0000,2493,1490,-88,,0460,0000,2493,13C5,-84,,0460,000 0,27BD,134F,-86,,0460,0000,27BE,0E43,-94,,2020806132304,0156\$

Parameter	Length	Range/Format	Default
Protocol version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'	
Fix Туре	3	FRI ERI RTL GIR	
MCC1	4	0XXX	
MNC1	4	OXXX	
LAC1	4		
Cell ID1	<=8		
RX Level1	2	0 - 63	
Reserved	0		
MCC2	4	0XXX	
MNC2	4	0XXX	
LAC2	4		
Cell ID2	<=8		
RX Level2	2	0 - 63	
Reserved	0		
MCC3	4	OXXX	
MNC3	4	0XXX	
LAC3	4		
Cell ID3	<=8		
RX Level3	2	0 - 63	
Reserved	0		
MCC4	4	OXXX	
MNC4	4	OXXX	
LAC4	4		



Cell ID4	<=8		
RX Level4	2	0 - 63	
Reserved	0		
MCC5	4	OXXX	
MNC5	4	OXXX	
LAC5	4		
Cell ID5	<=8		
RX Level5	2	0 - 31	
Reserved	0		
MCC6	4	OXXX	
MNC6	4	OXXX	
LAC6	4		
Cell ID6	<=8		
RX Level6	2	0 - 63	
Reserved	0		
МСС	4	OXXX	
MNC	4	OXXX	
LAC	4		
Cell ID	<=8		
RX Level	2	0 - 63	
Reserved	0		
Send time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count number	4	(HEX)	
Tail character	1	\$	\$

- *<Fix Type>*: A string which indicates the type of GPS fix this cell information is for. "FRI": This cell information is for FRI request.
  - "RTL": This cell information is for RTL request.
  - "GIR": This cell information is for RTO (GIR) request.
- $\diamond$  *(i)*: MCC of the neighbor cell *i* (*i* is the index of the neighbor cell).



- - 0: -113 dBm or less
  - 1: -111dBm
  - 2 to 30: -109 to -63 dBm
  - 31: -51dBm or greater
- $\diamond$  *ACC*>: MCC of the serving cell.

- ♦ <Cell ID>: Cell ID (in hex format) of the serving cell.
- ♦ <RX level>: The signal strength of the serving cell.

# Note:

1. It may include information of several neighbor cells. If no neighbor cell is found, all the fields of the neighbor cell will be empty.

2. "ffff" in the fields of <LAC(i)> and <Cell ID(i)> means the terminal does not know the value.

# **3.3.3. Report for Querying**

The reports for real time querying via the command **AT+GTRTO** are as follows.

$\triangleright$	+RESP:GTGPS: Th	ne report for the	real time operation	of the subcommand GPS.
------------------	-----------------	-------------------	---------------------	------------------------

Example:			
+RESP:GTGPS,C30203,	015181001707687,g	l320m,0,8,,3F,,,20200811034843,2020	0811114844
,00A6\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
GPS On Need	1	0 1 2	
GPS Fix Delay	<=2	5 - 60(sec)	
Reserved	0		
Report Item Mask	<=4	(HEX)	
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Last GPS Fix UTC	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Time			
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

+RESP:GTALC: The report for the real time operation of the subcommand READ. After the device receives the command AT+GTRTO to read all the configurations, it will send all configurations to the backend server by the message +RESP:GTALC. If the length of the



message is greater than 1000 bytes, the **+RESP:GTALC** will be divided into several packets with the *<Configuration Mask>* indicating the content of each packet. This message is only sent via TCP connection even if the report mode is Force on SMS.

#### Example:

+RESP:GTALC,C30207,866833045604466,,00000000003ffff,1,1,BSI,,,,,,0,0,0,1,0,0,0,SRI,3,,0,w ww.xxx.com,915,www.xxx.com,990,22,0,0,0,2,,CFG,gl320m,gl320m,0,0.0,1,5,001f,,,0FFF,0,1, 1,300,2,0,20491231235959,0,0000,0,10,0,,DIS,1,0,5,,,,,TMZ,+,00,00,0,,,,FRI,1,1,,,0000,0000,30 1,301,180,180,,1000,1000,0,5,50,5,0,0,GEO,0,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,1,0,0.000000,0.0 00000,50,0,0,,,,,,2,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,6,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,4,0,0.0 0000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,5,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,6,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,,4,0,0.0 0000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,5,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,6,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,,4,0,0.0 0,0,,,,10,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,11,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,12,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,15,0 0,00000,50,0,0,,,,,,13,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,14,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,15,0 0,0,,,,,18,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,14,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,15,0 0,0,,,,,,18,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,14,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,,15,0 0,0,,,,,,18,0,0.000000,0.00000,50,0,0,,,,,14,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,,15,0 0,0,,,,,,18,0,0.000000,0.00000,50,0,0,,,,,14,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,,15,0 0,0,,,,,,18,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,14,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,,15,0 0,0,,,,,,,18,0,0.000000,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,14,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,,15,0 0,0,,,,,,,18,0,0.000000,0.00000,50,0,0,,,,,,14,0,0.000000,50,0,0,,,,,,,5PD,0,0,0,60,30 0,,,,,,,NMD,0,2,3,2,300,300,2,3,0,0,2,,,FKS,1,13,0,0,3,3,4,4,3,GLM,0,,,,,,,PIN,1,,,,,,OWH,0, 1F,0900,1200,1300,1800,,,0,,,,,,DG,1,60,7,0200,,1,0,0,,,WLT,0,1,1,,,,,,TEM,0,0,0,60,30 0,,,,,,,UPC,0,10,0,0,0,0,0,,,,,,PDS,1,69,,,,,20230721031344,00A9\$

+RESP:GTALC,C30207,866833045604466,,0000800007e40000,1,2,GAM,1,1,25,10,60,60,,,,,MSA, 0,1,5,5,,,,NTS,0,,,,,SIM,0,,1,,,,,,URT,,12,,,,,,HBM,0,3,,100,0,0,,60,0,0,,,0,0,,,,,,,AAC,1,,,JD C,0,2,,,10,10,,,,,,RPC,0000,,,,,,APN,0,0,000123,321,567,,,,,1,0,46008,HAHA,,,,,,2,0,46009,XIXI,,, ,,,,3,0,46008,RTYU,,,,,4,0,46007,nmsl,,,,,5,0,,nmsl,,,,,6,0,,,,,,7,0,,,,,,20230721031344,00A A\$

+RESP:GTALC,C30207,866833045604466,,100000000000000,0,4,CMD,0,,,,,1,,,,,2,,,,,3,,,,,4,,,,, ,5,,,,,6,,,,,7,,,,,8,,,,,9,,,,,10,,,,,,11,,,,,12,,,,,13,,,,,14,,,,,,15,,,,,16,,,,,,17,,,,,18,,,,,19,,,,,20,,,,,2 1,,,,,22,,,,,23,,,,,24,,,,25,,,,,26,,,,,27,,,,28,,,,29,,,,,30,,,,,31,,,,,20230721031345,00AC\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-',		
		<i>( )</i> -		
Configuration Mask	16	000000000000000 -		
		FFFFFFFFFFFFFF		
Next Packet	1	0-1		
Current Packet	<=2	1-20		
BSI	3	BSI	BSI	



r			
LTE APN	<=40		
LTE APN User Name	<=30		
LTE APN Password	<=30		
GPRS APN	<=40		
GPRS APN User Name	<=30		
GPRS APN Password	<=30		
Network Mode	1	0 - 3	
LTE Mode	1	0 - 5	
APN Authentication	1	0 - 3	0
Methods			
Manual Netreg	1	0 - 1	1
Edrx Periodic	<=8	0  5120 - 10485760 ms	0
Edrx M1 Pagings	<=4	0 128-2048(x10ms)	0
Edrx NB2 Pagings	<=4	0 256-4096(x10ms)	0
Reserved	0		
SRI	3	SRI	SRI
Report Mode	1	0 - 7	0
Reserved	0		
Enable Buffer	1	0 1 2	1
Main Server IP/Domain	<=60		
Name			
Main Server Port	<=5	0 - 65535	0
Backup Server IP/Domain	<=60		
Name			
Backup Server Port	<=5	0 - 65535	0
SMS Gateway	<=20		
Heartbeat Interval	<=3	0 5 - 360(min)	0
Enable SACK	1	0 1	0
SMS ACK Enable	1	0 1	0
Multi-packet Sending	1	0 1	0
DNS Lookup Interval	<=4	0-1440(min)	0
Reserved	0		
CFG	3	CFG	CFG
New Password	4 - 20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', , ,	
Device Name	<=20	 '0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', ' _'	gl320m
Enable ODO	1	0 1	0
ODO Initial Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	0.0
GPS On Need	1	0 1 2	1
GPS Fix Delay	2	5 - 60(sec)	5
Report Item Mask	<=4	0000 - 007F	001F



Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Event Mask	4	0000 - 3FFF	OFFF
EPB mode	1	0 1	0
LED On	1	0 - 2	1
Info Report Enable	1	0 1	1
Info Report Interval	<=5	30 - 86400(sec)	300
Location Request Mask	1	0 2	2
Expiry Enable	1	0 1	0
Expiry Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	20491231235959
AGPS Mode	1	0 1	0
GSM Report	4		0
Battery Switch Power On	1	0 1	0
Battery Low Percentage	1	0 - 30	10
Walking Mode	1	0 1	0
Reserved	0		
DIS	3	DIS	DIS
Input ID	1	1	1
Enable	1	0 1	0
Debounce Time	<=2	1 - 20 (*10ms)	5
Reserved	0		
TMZ	3	TMZ	TMZ
Time Zone	5	- +HHMM	
Daylight Saving	1	0 1	
Reserved	0		
FRI	3	FRI	FRI
Mode	1	0 1 2 3 4 5 6	0
Discard No Fix	1	0 1	1
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Begin Time	4	ННММ	0000
End Time	4	ННММ	0000
Check Interval	<=5	1 - 86400(sec)	180
Send Interval	<=5	1 - 86400(sec)	180
Ignition Check Interval	<=5	1 - 86400(sec)	180



Ignition Send Interval	<=5	1- 86400(sec)	180
Reserved	0		
Distance	<=5	20 - 65535m	1000
Mileage	<=5	20 - 65535m	1000
Movement Detection	1	0 1	0
Mode			
Movement Speed	<=3	1 - 999((km/h))	5
Movement Distance	<=4	1 - 9999(m)	50
Movement Send Number	1	1-5	5
Corner	<=3	0 - 180	0
ERI Mask	<=8	00000000 - FFFFFFFF	0000000
GEO	3	GEO	GEO
GEO IDO	<=2	0	0
Mode	1	0 - 3	0
Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
Radius	<=7	25 - 600000(m)	50
Check Interval	<=5	0 - 86400(sec)	0
State Mode	1	0 1	0
Reserved	0		
GEO ID1	<=2	1	1
Mode	1	0 - 3	0
Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
Radius	<=7	25 - 6000000(m)	50
Check Interval	<=5	0 - 86400(sec)	0
State Mode	1	0 1	0
Reserved	0		
	1		
GEO ID18	<=2	18	18



Mode	1	0 - 3	0
Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
Radius	<=7	25 - 600000(m)	50
Check Interval	<=5	0 - 86400(sec)	0
State Mode	1	0 1	0
Reserved	0		
GEO ID19	<=2	19	19
Mode	1	0 - 3	0
Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
Radius	<=7	25 - 6000000(m)	50
Check Interval	<=5	0 - 86400(sec)	0
State Mode	1	0 1	0
Reserved	0		
SPD	3	SPD	SPD
Mode	1	0 1 2 3 4	0
Min. Speed	<=3	0 - 400(km/h)	0
Max. Speed	<=3	0 - 400(km/h)	0
Valid Time	<=4	15 - 3600(sec)	60
Send Interval	<=4	30 - 3600(sec)	300
Reserved	0		



Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
NMD	3	NMD	NMD
Mode	1	0 - F	0
Non-movement Duration	<=3	1 - 255(*15sec)	2
Movement Duration	<=2	1 - 50(*100ms)	3
Movement Threshold	1	2 - 9	2
Rest Fix Interval	5	5 - 86400(sec)	300
Rest Send Interval	5	5 - 86400(sec)	300
PM Rest Threshold	1	2 - 9	2
PM Motion Threshold	1	2 - 9	3
URC Report	1	0 1	0
Enter Movement By	1	0 1	0
Command			
NMD Report Mode	1	1-3	2
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
FKS	3	FKS	FKS
Power Key Mode	1	0 1 2	1
Full Power On	1	0 1	1
Function Key Mode	1	0 1 2 3 4 5	3
Power Key Indication	1	0 1	0
Function Key Indication	1	0 1	0
SOS Report Mode	1	1 2 3	3
First Trigger Time	<=2	1 - 99s	3
Second Trigger Time	<=2	1 - 99s	4
First Trigger Event	1	0 - 4	4
Second Trigger Event	1	0 - 4	3
GLM	3	GLM	GLM
Google Mode	1	0 1 2	0
Direct Number	<=20		
Direct Number	<=20		
Direct Number	<=20		
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Decembral			
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		



Auto Unlock PIN	1	0 1	1
PIN	0 4-8	'0' - '9'	
Reserved	0	0	0
Reserved	0		
ОШН	3	OWH	OWH
Mode	1	0 1 2 3	0
Day of Work	<=2	0 - 7F	1F
Working Hours Start1	4	ннмм	0900
Working Hours End1	4	ННММ	1200
Working Hours Start2	4	ннмм	1300
Working Hours End2	4	ннмм	1800
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Digital Input ID	1	0 1	0
RF Sleep Mode	0	0 1	0
Reserved	0		
DOG	3	DOG	DOG
Mode	1	0 1 2	0
Ignition Frequency	<=3	10 - 120	60
Interval	<=2	1 - 30(days)	30
Time	4	ннмм	0200
Reserved	0		
Report Before Reboot	1	0 1	1
Input ID	1	0 1	0
Unit	1	0 1	0
Network Interval	<=4	0 5 - 1440	480
PDP Interval	<=4	0 5 - 1440	480
Send Fail Timeout	<=4	0 5 - 1440	480
Reserved	0		
WLT	3	WLT	WLT
Call Filter	1	0 1 2 3	1
White Number List	<=20		
Number			



White Number List Number<=20				
NumberImage: servedImage: served	White Number List	<=20		
White Number List Number<=20Intermet and the second sec	Number			
NumberImage: NumberImage: Second Secon	White Number List	<=20		
White Number List Number<=20Image: second	Number			
NumberImage: servedImage: served	White Number List	<=20		
White Number List Number<=20Image: Second	Number			
NumberImage: servedImage: served	White Number List	<=20		
White Number List Number<=20Image: second	Number			
NumberImage of the second	White Number List	<=20		
White Number List Number<=20White Number List Number<=20	Number			
Number<White Number List Number<=20	White Number List	<=20		
White Number List Number<=20White Number List Number<=20	Number			1
NumberWhite Number List Number<=20	White Number List	<=20		
White Number List Number<=20Image: set of the set	Number			
NumberImage: servedImage: servedNumber0Image: servedReserved0Image: servedReserved0Image: servedReserved0Image: servedReserved0Image: servedReserved0Image: servedReserved0Image: servedReserved0Image: servedMode10 1 2 3 4Mode10 1 2 3 4Mode10 1 2 3 4Mode10 1 2 3 4Mode10/100000000000000000000000000000000000	White Number List	<=20		
White Number List Number<=20Image: Sevent of the servedReserved0Image: Sevent of the served0Image: Sevent of the servedReserved0Image: Sevent of the served0Image: Sevent of the servedReserved0Image: Sevent of the served0Image: Sevent of the servedMode10 1 2 3 40Image: Sevent of the servedMax. Temperature<=3	Number			
NumberImage of the servedImage of the servedReserved0Image of the servedReserved0Image of the servedReserved0Image of the servedReserved0Image of the servedMode10 1 2 3 40Mode10 1 2 3 40Min. Temperature<=3	White Number List	<=20		
Reserved0.Reserved0.Reserved0.Reserved0.TEM3TEMMode10 1 2 3 40Min. Temperature<=3	Number			
Reserved0Image: constraint of the symbolReserved0Image: constraint of the symbolReserved0Image: constraint of the symbolTEM3TEMTEMMode10 1 2 3 40Min. Temperature<=3	Reserved	0		
Reserved         0         Image: margin and ma	Reserved	0		
Reserved         0         TEM         TEM           TEM         3         TEM         TEM           Mode         1         0 1 2 3 4         0           Min. Temperature         <=3	Reserved	0		
TEM         3         TEM         TEM           Mode         1         0 1 2 3 4         0           Min. Temperature         <=3	Reserved	0		
Mode         1 $0 1 2 3 4$ 0           Min. Temperature         <=3	TEM	3	TEM	TEM
Min. Temperature         <=3 $-20(\degree C) - 60(\degree C)$ 0           Max. Temperature         <=3	Mode	1	0 1 2 3 4	0
Max. Temperature         <=3         -20(°C) - 60(°C)         0           Duration         <=4	Min. Temperature	<=3	-20(℃) - 60(℃)	0
Duration<=40 - 3600(sec)60Send Interval<=4	Max. Temperature	<=3	-20(℃) - 60(℃)	0
Send Interval<=40 5 - 3600(sec)300Reserved0Reserved0Reserved0Reserved0Reserved0Reserved0Reserved0Reserved0Max. Download Retry10 - 30Download Timeout<=2	Duration	<=4	0 - 3600(sec)	60
Reserved0IIReserved0IIReserved0IIReserved0IIReserved0IIReserved0IIUPC3UPCUPCMax. Download Retry10-30Download Timeout<=2	Send Interval	<=4	0 5 - 3600(sec)	300
Reserved0	Reserved	0		
Reserved0Image: constraint of the servedReserved0Image: constraint of the servedReserved0Image: constraint of the servedUPC3UPCMax. Download Retry10 - 3Download Retry10 - 3Download Timeout<=2	Reserved	0		
Reserved0	Reserved	0		
Reserved0Image: constraint of the systemReserved0Image: constraint of the systemUPC3UPCUPCMax. Download Retry10 - 30Download Timeout<=2	Reserved	0		
Reserved0Image: constraint of the systemUPC3UPCUPCMax. Download Retry10 - 30Download Timeout<=2	Reserved	0		
UPC3UPCUPCMax. Download Retry10 - 30Download Timeout<=2	Reserved	0		
Max. Download Retry         1         0 - 3         0           Download Timeout         <=2	UPC	3	UPC	UPC
Download Timeout         <=2         5 - 30(min)         10           Download Protocol         1         0         0           Enable Report         1         0 1         0           Update Interval         1         0 - 8760         0           Download URL         <=100	Max. Download Retry	1	0 - 3	0
Download Protocol         1         0         0           Enable Report         1         0 1         0           Update Interval         1         0-8760         0           Download URL         <=100	Download Timeout	<=2	5 - 30(min)	10
Enable Report         1         0 1         0           Update Interval         1         0 - 8760         0           Download URL         <=100	Download Protocol	1	0	0
Update Interval         1         0 - 8760         0           Download URL         <=100	Enable Report	1	0 1	0
Download URL         <=100         URL           Mode         1         0 1         0	Update Interval	1	0 - 8760	0
Mode 1 0 1 0	Download URL	<=100	URL	
	Mode	1	0 1	0



Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
PDS	3	PDS	PDS
Mode	1	0 1 2	1
Mask	<=6	0-7FFFFF	69
Reserved			
GAM	3	GAM	GAM
Mode	1	0 1	1
Speed Mode	1	0 1	1
Motion Speed Threshold	<=2	0 - 50(km/h)	25
Motion Cumulative Time	<=3	10 - 100(sec)	10
Motionless Cumulative	<-2	10, 250(soc)	60
Time	X=3	10-250(sec)	00
GPS Fix Failure Timeout	<=4	5 - 1800(sec)	60
Reserved	0		
MSA	3	MSA	MSA
Mode	1	0 1	0
Send Last Position	1	0 1	1
Sensitivity	<=2	1-10	5
Alarm Timeout	<=2	5-10(second)	5
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
NTS	3	NTS	NTS
Enable	1	0 1	0
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Allowed Oper1	<=10		
Allowed Oper2	<=10		
Allowed Oper3	<=10		
Reserved	0		
Blocked Oper1	10		
Blocked Oper2	10		



Blocked Oper3	10		
Reserved	0		
SIM	3	SIM	SIM
ICCID Mode	1	0 1 2 3	0
ICCID	20		
Operation Mask	<=8	0-FFFFFFF	1
Reserved	0		
URT	3	URT	URT
Reserved	0		0
Baudrate Index	<=2	5 12	12
Reserved			
НВМ	3	НВМ	НВМ
Mode	1	0   1	0
Behavior Duration	1	3-5	3
Reserved	0		
High Speed	<=3	100-400km/h	100
riangleVhb	<=3	0-100km/h	0
riangleVha	<=3	0-100km/h	0
Reserved	0		
Medium Speed	<=3	20-100km/h	60
∆Vmb	<=3	0-100km/h	0
∆Vma	<=3	0-100km/h	0
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
∆Vlb	<=3	0-100km/h	0
riangleVla	<=3	0-100km/h	0
Reserved	0		



Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
JDC	3	JDC	JDC
Mode	1	0 1 2	0
Jamming Level	1	1 2 3	2
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Enter Jamming Timer Threshold	<=3	0-300 sec	10
Ouit Jamming Timer Threshold	<=4	0-3600 sec	10
Reserved	0		
RPC	3	RPC	RPC
Report Mask	4	0000 - 0001	0000
Reserved	1		
Reserved	0		
AAC	3	AAC	AAC
Mode	1	0 1 2	0
Reserved			
Reserved			
APN	3	APN	APN
Command ID	1	0-7	0
Mode	1	0 1	0
PLMN	<=6	'0' - '9'	
APN	<=40	ʻ0' - ʻ9', ʻa' - ʻz', ʻA' - ʻZ', ʻ-', ʻ.'	
APN User Name	<=30		
APN Password	<=30		
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		
Reserved	0		



Reserved	0		
Command ID	1	0-7	7
Mode	1	0 1	0
PLMN	<=6	'0' - '9'	
APN	<=40	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '.'	
APN User Name	<=30		
APN Password	<=30		
Reserved	0		
UDF	3	UDF	UDF
Mode	1	0 - 2	0
Group ID 0	2	0 - 31	
Input ID Mask	16	0 - FFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	
Debounce Time	5	0 - 86400(s)	0
Inzizo Mask	5	0 - FFFFF	0
Outzizo Mask	5	0 - FFFFF	0
Stocmd ID Mask	16	0 - FFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	
Stocmd Ack	1	0 1	0
Reserved			
			1
Mode	1	0 - 2	0
Group ID 31	2	0 - 31	
Input ID Mask	16	0 - FFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	
Debounce Time	5	0 - 86400(s)	0
Inzizo Mask	5	0 - FFFFF	0
Outzizo Mask	5	0 - FFFFF	0
Stocmd ID Mask	16	0 - FFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	
Stocmd Ack	1	0 1	0
Reserved			
CMD	3	CMD	CMD
Mode	1	0 - 1	0
Stored cmd ID 0	3	0 - 31	



Command String	200	AT command	
Reserved	0		
			-
Mode	1	0 - 1	0
Stored cmd ID 31	3	0 - 31	
Command String	200	AT command	
Reserved	0		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <Next Packet>: Whether the following information packet is the last one or not.

- 0: The following packet is the last information packet.
- 1: The following packet is not the last information packet.

**Note:** Regardless the report mode setting, **+RESP:GTALC** is only reported through TCP/UDP. If current report mode is Force on SMS, **+RESP:GTALC** will still be reported via TCP/UDP.

+RESP:GTALM: After the device receives the command AT+GTRTO to read all the configurations, it will send all configurations to the backend server via +RESP:GTALM message. This message is only sent via GPRS/LTE even if the report mode is Force on SMS. If the message is too long, then it will be subpackaged into several +RESP:GTALM messages.

Example:



Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	XX0000 - XXFFFF, X∈{'A' - 'Z','0' - '9'}	
Unique ID	15	IMEI	
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'	
Total Packets	2	1-10	
Current Packet	2	1 - 10	
Configurations	< 1500		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	0000 – FFFF	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- <Configurations>: The current configuration of the device. The first message contains configurations of the commands from BSI to FRI, the second message contains configurations of the commands from GEO to DOG, the third message is for the configurations of the commands from IDL to GPJ, and the last message is for the configurations of the commands from RMD to the end of the protocol commands.

**Note:** The length of every **+RESP:GTALM** message (including header and tail) should be no more than 1500 characters.

**+RESP:GTCID:** The report for the real time operation of the subcommand **CID**.

Example:



+RESP:GTCID,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,89860117851087152093,20200806115808,0				
0B4\$	0B4\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
ICCID	20			
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

#### **+RESP:GTCSQ:** The report for the real time operation of the subcommand **CSQ**.

Example:				
+RESP:GTCSQ,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,11,99,20200811115837,00B6\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
CSQ RSSI	<=2	0 - 31 99		
CSQ BER	<=2	0 - 7 99		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

- **+RESP:GTVER:** The report for the real time operation of the subcommand **VER**.
- Example:

+RESP:GTVER,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,GL320M\_B7K1,0802,0106,0000,BG95,BG95 M5LAR02A03,20200811115908,00B8\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-',	
		<i>( )</i> -	
Device Type	<=11	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-',	GL320M_B7K1
		<i>· · ·</i>	
Firmware Version	4	(HEX)	
Hardware Version	4	(HEX)	
Reserved	4	0000	0000
Modem Hardware Version	<=20		
Modem Software Version	<=50		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	



Tail Character 1	\$	\$
------------------	----	----

- ♦ <Device Type>: A string which represents the type of the device.
- *<Firmware Version>*: The firmware version of the device. The first two characters indicate the major version and the last two characters indicate the minor version. For example, 010A means version 1.10.
- *<Hardware Version>*: The hardware version of the device. The first two characters indicate the major version and the last two characters indicate the minor version. For example, 010A means version 1.10.
- ♦ <Modem Hardware Version>: It gives the modem hardware information of this device.
- ♦ <Modem Software Version>: It gives the modem software version information of this device.

Example:				
+RESP:GTBAT,C30203,01	+RESP:GTBAT,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,1,0,100,4.19,1,1,20200811115945,00BA\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
External Power Supply	1	0 1		
External Battery Kit	1	0 1		
Connection				
Battery Percentage	<=3	0 - 100		
Battery Voltage	<=4	0.0 - 4.50V		
Charging	1	0 1		
LED On	1	0 - 2		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

#### > +RESP:GTBAT: The report for the real time operation of the subcommand BAT.

+RESP:GTTMZ: The report for the real time operation of the subcommand TMZ.

Example:			
+RESP:GTTMZ,C30203,0	15181001707687, <sub>{</sub>	gl320m,+0800,0,20200811120008,00BC	\$
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Time Zone Offset	5	+/- HHMM	
Daylight Saving	1	0 1	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$



Example:			
+RESP:GTALS,C30203,01	5181001707687,g	l320m,DIS,1,1,5,2,,,,,20200811134609,	010F\$
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
DIS	3	DIS	DIS
Input ID	1	1	1
Mode	1	0 1 2 3	0
Debounce Time	<=2	0 - 20 (*10ms)	5
Report Mode	1	1 2	2
Reserved	0		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

**+RESP:GTALS:** The report for the real time operation of the subcommand **READ** (e.g. DIS).

+RESP:GTAIF: After the device receives the command AT+GTRTO to get the AIF, it will send the information via the message +RESP:GTAIF to the backend server.

Example:
+RESP:GTAIF,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,555555,34s22s,3444,3333,21ss,223,89860117
851087152093,19,99,AEC3,10.228.45.8,,,,,0,20200811135211,0116\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
LTE APN	<=40		
LTE APN User Name	<=30		
LTE APN Password	<=30		
GPRS APN	<=40		
GPRS APN User Name	<=30		
GPRS APN Password	<=30		
ICCID	20		



CSQ RSSI	<=2	0 - 31 99	
CSQ BER	<=2	0 - 7 99	
Cell ID	<=8		
IP Address	<=15	0.0.0.0	
Main DNS	<=15	0.0.0.0	
Backup DNS	<=15	0.0.0.0	
Current APN	<=40		
Reserved			
Reserved			
Network Type	1	0,1,2	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <CSQ RSSI>: The signal strength level.

CSQ RSSI	Signal Strength (dBm)
0	<-133
1	-111
2 - 30	-10953
31	>-51
99	Unknown

- <CSQ BER>: The quality of the network signal. The range is 0 -7, and 99 is for unknown signal strength.
- ♦ <Cell ID>: The cell ID (in hex format) of the serving operator.
- ♦ <IP Address>: The IP address of the device.
- ♦ <Main DNS>: The main DNS server.

♦

∻

- Current APN>: The APN that is currently used by the device. *Network Type>*: The type of the mobile network the device is currently registered to.
  - 0: Unregistered
  - 1: GSM
  - 2: Cat-M1/Cat-NB2/LTE
- +RESP:GTGSV: After the device receives the command to get satellite information, it will send the satellite information via the message +RESP:GTGSV to the backend server.

#### Example:

+RESP:GTGSV,F50701,015181001708016,,11,2,11,3,10,4,0,5,22,6,30,9,14,12,34,17,35,19,30,23 ,20,28,13,20200806094936,3E2C\$



Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	XX0000 - XXFFFF, $X \in \{ A' - Z', 0' - 9' \}$	
Unique ID	15	IMEI	
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'	
SV Count	<=2	0-24	
SV ID	<=2	>= 0	
SV Power	<=2	>= 0	
SV ID	<=2		
SV Power	<=2		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	0000 – FFFF	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <SV Count>: The count of satellites the GPS finds.

 $\diamond$  *SV ID>*: The satellite ID. In case of no satellite, the field is filled with zero.

♦ <SV Power>: Satellite power. In case of no satellite, the field is filled with zero.

# +RESP:GTATI:

Example:				
+RESP:GTATI,F50801,015181001708016,,F,140a01,010B,0201,BG95,20200806132601,0162\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
ATI Mask	<=8	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'f', 'A' - 'F,		
Firmware Version	6			
Hardware Version	4			
Bootloader Version	<=40			
Modem Hardware	<=20			
Version				
Modem Software	<=40			
Version				
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	



- *<Firmware Version>*: The firmware version. The first two characters represent the branch version, the middle two characters represent the major version and the last two characters represent the minor version. For example, **140A01** means the version **20.10.1**. If the corresponding bit in ATI Mask is set to 0, this field will be empty.
- *<Hardware Version>*: The hardware version. The first two characters represent the major version and the last two characters represent the minor version. For example,**010A** means the version **1.10**. If the corresponding bit in ATI Mask is set to 0, this field will be empty.
- *<Modem Software Version>*: It gives the modem software version information of this device. If the corresponding bit in ATI Mask is set to 0, this field will be empty.

#### 3.3.4. Event Report

The following event reports are triggered when certain events occur.

- +RESP:GTPNA: Power on report
- +RESP:GTPFA: Power off report
- +RESP:GTEPN: The report for connecting external power supply
- **+RESP:GTEPF**: The report for disconnecting external power supply
- +RESP:: Battery low report
- +RESP:GTBTC: Start charging report
- +RESP:GTSTC: Stop charging report
- +RESP:GTSTT: Device state indication when the device status is changed.
- +RESP:GTPDP: PDP connection report
- +RESP:GTSWG: Enable or disable Geo-fence ID 0 via function key
- +RESP:GTIGN: Ignition on report
- +RESP:GTIGF: Ignition off report
- +RESP:GTTEM: Temperature alarm report
- +RESP:GTUPC: Configuration updated report
- **+RESP:GTLGL**: If <Send Last Position> in **AT+GTMSA** is set to 1, the device will report **+RESP:GTLGL** when it detects fall accident.

In **+RESP:GTEPN**, **+RESP:GTEPF**, **+RESP:GTBTC**, **+RESP:GTSTC**, **+RESP:GTBPL**, **+RESP:GTSTT**, and **+RESP:GTSWG** event reports, the last known GPS information and the current network information are included.

Example: +RESP:GTPNA_C30203_015181001707687_el320m_20200806135351_0119\$				
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Default				
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		

# +RESP:GTPNA,



Tail Character1\$\$	
---------------------	--

#### ➤ +RESP:GTPFA,

Example:				
+RESP:GTPFA,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,20200806135337,0118\$				
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Defa				
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

#### +RESP:GTEPN,

Example:				
+RESP:GTEPN,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,1,0.0,0,210.5,114.016051,22.539205,20200				
811055726,0460,0001,25	3D,AEC3,0.1,2020	008111 <b>35727,012</b> B\$		
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50		
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9 <mark>(km/h)</mark>		
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359		
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)		
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX		
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX		
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
MCC	0 4	OXXX		
MNC	0 4	OXXX		
LAC	0 4	(HEX)		
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)		
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

- <Last Longitude>: The longitude of the last position. The format is "(-)XXX.XXXXXX" and the value range is from "-180.000000" to "180.000000". The unit is degree. West longitude is represented as a negative value starting with the minus sign "-" and east longitude is represented as a positive value without "+".



range is from "-90.000000" to "90.000000". The unit is degree. South latitude is represented as a negative value starting with the minus sign "-" and north latitude is represented as a positive value without "+".

# ➤ +RESP:GTEPF,

Example:				
+RESP:GTEPF,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,1,0.0,0,238.3,114.016303,22.539099,20200				
811055554,0460,0001,25	3D,AEC3,0.1,2020	0811135554,0122\$		
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50		
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)		
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359		
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)		
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX		
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX		
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
MCC	0 4	OXXX		
MNC	0 4	OXXX		
LAC	0 4	(HEX)		
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)		
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

#### ➤ +RESP:GTBPL,

Example:					
+RESP:GTBPL,C30203,015181001707687,,3.48,0,0.0,0,178.4,114.015571,22.537409,2019090					
6013759,0000,0000,00	00,0000,,20200806	155248,0639\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default		
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)			
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)			
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'			
Battery Voltage	<=4	0.0 - 4.50V			
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50			
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)			
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359			
Altitude <=8 (-)XXXXX.X(m)					
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX			



Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
МСС	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

# ➤ +RESP:GTBTC,

# Example:

# +RESP:GTBTC,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,1,0.0,0,210.5,114.016051,22.539205,20190 911055726,0460,0001,253D,AEC3,0.1,20200811135727,012C\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

#### ➤ +RESP:GTSTC,

Example:			
+RESP:GTSTC,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,,1,0.0,0,238.3,114.016303,22.539099,20190			
911055554,0460,0001,253D,AEC3,0.1,20200811135555,0123\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	



Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Reserved	0		
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

## ➤ +RESP:GTSTT,

Example:			
+RESP:GTSTT,C30203,0	15181001707687,	gl320m,41,1,0.0,40,212.0,114.01620	5,22.539455,20
200811055755,0460,0001,253D,AEC3,0.2,20200811135756,012E\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
State	2	21 22 41 42	
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXX	
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$


### ➤ +RESP:GTPDP,

Example:				
+RESP:GTPDP,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,20200811135513,011E\$				
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

### ➤ +RESP:GTSWG,

Example:				
+RESP:GTSWG,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,0,3,0.0,40,234.9,114.015705,22.538426,20				
200811060133,0460,000	1,253D,AEC3,0.3,2	20200811140134,0135\$		
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default	
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)		
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)		
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'		
Geo Activation	1	0 1		
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50		
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)		
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359		
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)		
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX		
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX		
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
MCC	0 4	OXXX		
MNC	0 4	OXXX		
LAC	0 4	(HEX)		
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)		
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)		
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS		
Count Number	4	(HEX)		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$	

- - 0: Deactivate Geo-fence 0.
  - 1: Activate Geo-fence 0.



### ➤ +RESP:GTIGN,

00811031901,0460,00	000,27BD,0DFC,0.0,	20200811111901,005D\$	
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Duration of Ignition Off	<=6	0 - 999999 sec	
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

<Duration of Ignition Off>: Duration since ignition off. If it is greater than 999999 seconds, 999999 seconds will be reported.

# +RESP:GTIGF,

Example:			
+RESP:GTIGF,C30203,0	15181001707687,gl	320m,6,2,0.0,76,110.1,114.015607,22.	537200,202
00811031906,0460,000	00,27BD,0DFC,0.0,20	0200811111907,0061\$	
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Duration of Ignition	<=6	0 - 999999 sec	
On			
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	



Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
мсс	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

### ➤ +RESP:GTTEM,

Example:			
+RESP:GTTEM,C30203,0	15181001707687,	gl320m,2,38.1,1,0.0,0,225.9,114.01548	8,22.538050
,20200811062008,0460,	0001,253D,AEC3,0	.3,20200811142009,014F\$	
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Alarm Type	1	1 2 3 4	
Temperature	<=5	(-)XX.X	
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$



- <Last Longitude>: The longitude of the last position. The format is "(-)XXXXXXXX" and the value range is from "-180.000000" to "180.000000". The unit is degree. West longitude is represented as a negative value starting with the minus sign "-" and east longitude is represented as a positive value without "+".
- <Last Latitude>: The latitude of the last position. The format is "(-)XX.XXXXXX" and the value range is from "-90.000000" to "90.000000". The unit is degree. South latitude is represented as a negative value starting with the minus sign "-" and north latitude is represented as a positive value without "+".
- ♦ <Alarm Type>: The type of the temperature alarm.
  - 1: The current temperature is lower than the value specified by *<Min. Temperature>*.
  - 2: The current temperature is within the temperature threshold range.
  - 3: The current temperature is higher than the value specified by <*Max. Temperature*>.
  - 4: The current temperature is within or outside the range.

#### ➤ +RESP:GTDAT,

Example:			
+RESP:GTDAT,C30203	,01518100170768	7,gl320m,SSDXDDS,20200811142124,0	0152\$
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Data	<=200	(ASCII)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4		
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

<Data>: The data to be transferred when the command AT+GTDAT is executed. It should be a printable ASCII string.

#### +RESP:GTUPC,

Example:						
+RESP:GTUPC,C30203	+RESP:GTUPC,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,0,100,http://szqueclink.f3322.net:9180/gl32					
0m/deltabin/UPC_1.	ini,20200811142	238,0155\$				
Parameter	Length(Byte)	Range/Format	Default			
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)				
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)				
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'				
Command ID	1					
Result	3	100 101 102 103 200 201 202 300 301  302				
Download URL	<=100	URL				



Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	0000 - FFFF	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- <Command ID>: The command ID in the update configuration file. It is always 0 before the device starts to update the configuration. It indicates the total number of the commands when the response result code is 301. It indicates wrong format of command ID when the response result code is 302.
- - 100: The update command is starting.
  - 101: The update command is confirmed by the device.
  - 102: The update command is refused by the device.
  - 103: The update process is refused because the battery is low.
  - 200: The device starts to download the package.
  - 201: The device finishes downloading the package successfully.
  - 202: The device fails to download the package.
  - 300: The device starts to update the device configuration.
  - 301: The device finishes updating the device configuration successfully.
  - 302: The device fails to update the device configuration.

♦ <Download URL>: The URL to download the configuration. It includes the file name.

### 

Example:

# +RESP:GTLGL,F50902,015181001708016,gl320m,0,0,0.0,0,414.0,114.017693,22.538816,2020 0304082623,0460,0000,2493,16F9,0.0,20200304093453,02E7\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Report Type	1	0	
GPS Accuracy	<=2	0 - 50	
Speed	<=5	0.0 - 999.9(km/h)	
Azimuth	<=3	0 - 359	
Altitude	<=8	(-)XXXXX.X(m)	
Last Longitude	<=11	(-)XXX.XXXXXX	
Last Latitude	<=10	(-)XX.XXXXXX	
GPS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	0 4	OXXX	
MNC	0 4	OXXX	
LAC	0 4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	<=8	(HEX)	
ODO Mileage	<=9	0.0 - 4294967.0(km)	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	



Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

- - 0: This message is triggered by MSA function.

### ➤ +RESP:GTJDR,

# Example: +RESP:GTJDR,301303,860599004785994,,0,2.0,353,103.9,117.129373,31.839203,20190924033 114,,,,,00,20190924033225,07F4\$

Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'	
GNSS Accuracy	1	0	
Speed	<=5	0.0 – 999.9 km/h	
Azimuth	<=3	0 – 359	
Altitude	<=8	(–)XXXXX.X (m)	
Longitude	<=11	-180 - 180	
Latitude	<=10	-90 - 90	
GNSS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
МСС	4	OXXX	
MNC	4	OXXX	
LAC	4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	4 8	(HEX)	
Reserved	2	00	00
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

## ➤ +RESP:GTJDS,

#### Example:

+RESP:GTJDS,301303,860599004785994,,1,0,2.0,353,103.9,117.129373,31.839203,201909240 33114,0460,0000,550B,B969,00,20190924033556,07FE\$



Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' – '9' 'a' – 'z' 'A' – 'Z' '-' '_'	
Jamming Status	1	1 2	
GNSS Accuracy	1	0	
Speed	<=5	0.0 – 999.9 km/h	
Azimuth	<=3	0 – 359	
Altitude	<=8	(–)XXXXX.X (m)	
Longitude	<=11	-180 - 180	
Latitude	<=10	-90 - 90	
GNSS UTC Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
MCC	4	OXXX	
MNC	4	OXXX	
LAC	4	(HEX)	
Cell ID	4 8	(HEX)	
Reserved	2	00	00
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

♦ <Jamming Status>: The current jamming status of the device.

- 1: Quit the jamming state.
- 2: Enter the jamming state.

## 3.3.5. Buffer Report

If the buffer function is enabled, the terminal will save the messages into the buffer in the following circumstances.

- $\diamond$  No network signal.
- $\diamond$  Failed to activate network context for the TCP or UDP connection.
- ✤ Failed to establish TCP connection with the backend server.
- The buffered messages' header will be "+BUFF" instead of "+RESP" if device reboot occurs, for example, reboot caused by watchdog or manual reboot.

The buffered messages will be sent to the backend server when connection to the server recovers. The buffer reports are saved to the built-in non-volatile memory in case the device is reset. The device can save 10000 messages at most.



- ♦ Only +RESP messages except +RESP:GTALC and +RESP:GTPDP can be buffered.
- ☆ In the buffer report, the original header string "+RESP" is replaced by "+BUFF". Other contents such as the original sending time and count number remain unchanged.
- Buffered messages will be sent only via network by TCP or UDP protocol. They cannot be sent via SMS.
- ☆ The buffered messages will be sent after the real-time messages if <Buffer Mode> in AT+GTSRI is set to 1.
- ☆ The buffered messages will be sent before the real-time messages if <Buffer Mode> in AT+GTSRI is set to 2. The SOS message has the highest priority and is sent before the buffered messages.

### Example:

The following is an example of the buffered message:

+BUFF:GTFRI,C30203,015181001707687,gl320m,0,16,1,1,0.0,0,225.9,114.015488,22.538050,20 200811062436,0460,0001,253D,AEC3,0.0,100,20200811142438,0161\$

### 3.3.6. Report with Google Maps Hyperlink

According to the settings of the command **AT+GTGLM** or upon receiving **SMS Position Request** message via SMS, the device can send an SMS with a Google Maps hyperlink to a mobile phone.

If the device receives **SMS Position Request** message via SMS, gl320m Series will send its current position to the original number via SMS with a Google Maps hyperlink if the original number is a direct number (please refer to *<Direct Number List>* in the Chapter 3.2.6.4) or a number in the White Number List (please refer to *<White Number List>* in the Chapter 3.2.6.3).

If the <*Google Link Mode*> in the command **AT+GTGLM** is set to 1, gl320m Series will send an SMS with a Google Maps hyperlink to the direct phone numbers after the messages **+RESP:GTSOS** and **+RESP:GTGEO**.

#### Google Maps Hyperlink

Example: gl320m SOS: http://maps.google.com/maps?q=22.538503,114.017054+%28gl310m%29 F1 D2019/09/11T14:33:05 B100%			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
SMS Header	<=30		
Google Maps Hyperlink	<=77		
GPS Fix	2	F1 F0	
GPS UTC Time	20	DYYYY/MM/DDTHH:MM:SS	
Battery Level	<=5	B1 - 100(%)	

SMS Header>: A string that includes the terminal name and GPS fix type ("SOS", "IN GEO-i",



"OUT GEO-i", "LBC", "MSA").

♦ <Google Maps Hyperlink>: A string which represents a Google Maps hyperlink.

### 3.4. Heartbeat

+ACK:GTHBD.

Heartbeat is used to maintain the contact between the device and the backend server via network communication. The heartbeat package is sent to the backend server at the interval specified by *<Heartbeat Interval>* in the **AT+GTQSS** or **AT+GTSRI** command.

Example: +ACK:GTHBD, C30203, 015181001707687,, 20200811142438,11F0\$			
Parameter Length (Byte) Range/Format Defau			
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Unique ID	15	(IMEI)	
Device Name	<=20	'0' - '9', 'a' - 'z', 'A' - 'Z', '-', '_'	
Send Time	14	YYYYMMDDHHMMSS	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

Whenever the backend server receives a heartbeat package, it should reply with an acknowledgement message to the device.

Example: +SACK:GTHBD,C30203,11F0\$			
Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Protocol Version	6	(HEX)	
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$

+SACK:GTHBD,

Count Number>: The backend server uses the Count Number> extracted from the heartbeat package from the device as the Count Number> in the server acknowledgement of the heartbeat package.

### 3.5. Sever Acknowledgement

If server acknowledgement is enabled by the **AT+GTQSS** or **AT+GTSRI** command, the backend server will reply to the device whenever it receives a message from the device.

### > +SACK:

Example:	
+SACK:11F0\$	



Parameter	Length (Byte)	Range/Format	Default
Count Number	4	(HEX)	
Tail Character	1	\$	\$





# 4. Appendix: Message Index

### ♦ Command and ACK

AT+GTBSI +ACK:GTBSI AT+GTSRI +ACK:GTSRI AT+GTQSS +ACK:GTQSS AT+GTCFG +ACK:GTCFG AT+GTPIN +ACK:GTPIN AT+GTDOG +ACK:GTDOG AT+GTTMA +ACK:GTTMA AT+GTNMD +ACK:GTNMD AT+GTFKS +ACK:GTFKS AT+GTOWH +ACK:GTOWH AT+GTSIM +ACK:GTSIM AT+GTURT +ACK:GTURT AT+GTAAC +ACK:GTAAC AT+GTAPN +ACK:GTAPN AT+GTJDC +ACK:GTJDC

### AT+GTNTS

+ACK:GTNTS AT+GTFRI +ACK:GTFRI AT+GTGEO +ACK:GTGEO AT+GTSPD AT+GTSPD



+ACK:GTTEM AT+GTMSA +ACK:GTMSA AT+GTDIS +ACK:GTDIS AT+GTRTO +ACK:GTRTO AT+GTDAT +ACK:GTDAT AT+GTWLT +ACK:GTWLT AT+GTGLM +ACK:GTGLM AT+GTUPC +ACK:GTUPC AT+GTGAM +ACK:GTGAM AT+GTCMD +ACK:GTCMD AT+GTUDF +ACK:GTUDF AT+GTPDS +ACK:GTPDS AT+GTRVC +ACK:GTRVC AT+GTHBM +ACK:GTHBM AT+GTRPC +ACK:GTRPC

Position Related Report +RESP:GTFRI +RESP:GTGEO +RESP:GTSPD +RESP:GTSOS +RESP:GTRTL +RESP:GTRTL +RESP:GTPNL +RESP:GTNMR +RESP:GTDOG +RESP:GTDOG +RESP:GTIGL +RESP:GTGCR +RESP:GTLBC



+RESP:GTLOC +RESP:GTMSA +RESP:GTPFL +RESP:GTHBM

Device Information Report
 +RESP:GTINF
 +RESP:GTGSM

Report for Querying
 +RESP:GTGPS
 +RESP:GTALC
 +RESP:GTCID
 +RESP:GTCSQ
 +RESP:GTVER
 +RESP:GTBAT
 +RESP:GTALS
 +RESP:GTAIF
 +RESP:GTGSV

♦ Event Report +RESP:GTPNA +RESP:GTPFA +RESP:GTEPN +RESP:GTEPF +RESP:GTBPL +RESP:GTBTC +RESP:GTSTC +RESP:GTSTT +RESP:GTPDP +RESP:GTSWG +RESP:GTIGN +RESP:GTIGF +RESP:GTTEM +RESP:GTUPC +RESP:GTLGL +RESP:GTJDR +RESP:GTJDS

## ♦ Data Transfer Command Report <u>+RESP:GTDAT</u>



Heartbeat
+ACK:GTHBD
+SACK:GTHBD

☆ Server Acknowledgement +SACK